Public Document Pack

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
South Lakeland House, Kendal, Cumbria LA9 4UQ
www.southlakeland.gov.uk

You are requested to attend a meeting of
the Standards Committee
on Tuesday, 20 April 2021, at 2.00 p.m.
Please note that this meeting will be conducted remotely through Microsoft Teams Live
Events and in accordance with Section 78 of the Coronavirus Act 2020. Access details will
be provided to Committee Members prior to the meeting. Members of the public will be able
to access a live broadcast of the meeting here. For those using an Apple Device to access
the meeting, please note that Safari is not compatible with Microsoft Teams, so you will not
be able to watch the meeting using this web browser. If you wish to watch a virtual meeting
on any Apple device (iPad, iPhone or Mac) you will need to download the Microsoft Teams
App from the App Store, then click the link on the relevant SLDC webpage or Agenda and
follow the instructions on screen. Agendas are divided into two parts, with Part I items
being considered in the presence of the press and public. Part II Items, if any, will be
considered in the absence of the press and public for the reasons indicated on the Agenda
and relevant reports. It should be noted that discussions held in Part I are recorded and
that the recordings are uploaded to the Council’s Website.

Committee Membership
Councillors
Tom Harvey
Chris Hogg
John Holmes
Pete McSweeney
Peter Thornton (Vice-Chairman)
Matt Severn (Chairman)
Mark Wilson
Parish Members
David Peters
Peter Smillie
Note – Where relevant, agendas for Members are labelled “Private Document Pack” and
contain exempt information within the papers. Any relevant pages are marked as restricted
within Agendas labelled “Public Document Pack”.
Monday 12 April 2021
Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer)
For all enquiries, please contact:Committee Administrator:
Committee Services
Telephone:
01539 733333
e-mail:
committeeservices@southlakeland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Page Nos.
PART I

1

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for absence, if any.

2

MINUTES

5-8

To authorise the Chairman to sign, as a correct record, the minutes of the
meeting of the Committee held on 13 October 2020.

3

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
To receive declarations by Members of interests in respect of items on this
Agenda.
Members are reminded that, in accordance with the revised Code of Conduct,
they are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary interests or other
registrable interests which have not already been declared in the Council’s
Register of Interests. (It is a criminal offence not to declare a disclosable
pecuniary interest either in the Register or at the meeting.)
Members may, however, also decide, in the interests of clarity and
transparency, to declare at this point in the meeting, any such disclosable
pecuniary interests which they have already declared in the Register, as well as
any other registrable or other interests.
If a Member requires advice on any item involving a possible declaration of
interest which could affect his/her ability to speak and/or vote, he/she is advised
to contact the Monitoring Officer at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting.

4

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS
To consider whether the items, if any, in Part II of the Agenda should be
considered in the presence of the press and public.

5

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/2021

9 - 22

To consider the Annual report for 2020/2021 for a referral to Full Council.

6

CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS

23 - 28

To consider the report of the Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead
Specialist (Monitoring Officer) with regards to complaints under the Council’s
Standards Arrangements from October 2020 to date.

7

SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL
ARRANGEMENTS AND GUIDANCE REVISION

CODE

OF

CONDUCT,

29 - 94

To consider adopting the said Code (with suitable local revisions) together with
revisions to the Council’s Arrangements for Dealing with Code of Conduct
Matters and Guidance so as to implement the Committee for Standards in
Public Life’s Best Practice Recommendations.

8

INTERNAL AUDIT REPORT - ASSURANCE REVIEW OF MEMBER'S
INTERESTS AND DECLARATIONS
To review the register of interests and gifts and hospitality for employees for the
period between April 2020 and April 2021.

95 - 108

9

STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME APRIL 2021- MAY 2022
To consider the Standards Committee Work Programme (April 2021 to May
2022).

PART II
Private Section (exempt reasons under Schedule 12A of the Local
Government Act 1972, as amended by the Local Government (Access to
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, specified by way of paragraph
number)
There are no items in this Part of the Agenda.

109 - 110

This page is intentionally left blank

Item No.2
7
13.10.2020

Standards Committee
STANDARDS COMMITTEE

Minutes of the proceedings at a virtual meeting of the Standards Committee on
Tuesday, 13 October 2020, at 6.30 p.m.
Present
Councillors

Matt Severn (Chairman)
Peter Thornton (Vice-Chairman)
Tom Harvey
Chris Hogg

John Holmes
Pete McSweeney

Mark Wilson

Independent Members
David Tweddle
Parish Members
David Peters

Peter Smillie
Officers

Una Bell
Linda Fisher
Vicky McDonald

S/10

Case Management Team Leader
Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer)
Operational Lead Case Management

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT
Following confirmation that the live stream of the meeting had commenced, the
Chairman welcomed everyone to the virtual meeting of South Lakeland District
Council’s Standards Committee, in doing so, thanking all officers involved in the
process for their work on the Virtual Meetings.
The Chairman referred to the new Government legislation allowing councils to conduct
remote meetings and explained in detail to all taking part. He then invited Members of
the Standards Committee, the Independent Person and Parish Members to introduce
themselves, to advise whether they were taking part by video or audio and to confirm
that they were able to see (where practicable) and hear all Members participating in the
meeting. All Members present, including the Chairman himself, having indicated that
this was the case, he then referred to officers present at the meeting who would
introduce themselves when asked to address the meeting.

S/11

MINUTES
RESOLVED – That the Chairman be authorised to sign, as a correct record, the
minutes of the Committee meeting held on 7 July 2020.

Page 5

8
13.10.2020

S/12

Standards Committee

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
RESOLVED – That it be noted that no declarations of interest were raised.

S/13

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUDED ITEMS
RESOLVED – That it be noted that there were no excluded items on the agenda.

S/14

LOCAL GOVERNMENT OMBUDSMAN ANNUAL REVIEW AND COMPLAINTS
RECEIVED FROM APRIL 2019 TO MARCH 2020
The Operational Lead, Case Management, presented the annual report of the Local
Government Ombudsman for 2019/2020 and the summary of complaints and
compliments received from April 2019 to March 2020.
The Operational Lead, Case Management, informed Members that in line with the
introduction of Customer Connect, the Council had recently implemented an online
system for logging, monitoring and responding to customer comments, compliments
and complaints. In addition, following the implementation of the new online complaints
reporting system, the Council had introduced a streamlined Complaints Policy which
had reduced the number of complaint levels from three levels to two levels. She went
on to provide detailed statistics which included a breakdown of the complaints received
relating to service areas.
The Operational Lead, Case Management, drew Members attention to the Local
Government Ombudsman Annual Review 2019/20 letter, at Appendix 2 to the report
and responded to questions raised by Members.
RESOLVED – That the annual report of the Local Government Ombudsman for
2019/20 and the summary of complaints and compliments received from April 2019 to
March 2020, be received.

S/15

CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) presented
the Code of Conduct Complaints report. She informed Members that, at the time of
writing the report, there were two active complaints which were awaiting further
information and clarification prior to consideration by the Independent Person.
In response to a question raised by a Member, the Legal, Governance and Democracy
Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) outlined the complaints procedure.
RESOLVED – That the Code of Conduct Complaints report be noted.

S/16

STANDARDS COMMITTEE WORK PROGRAMME
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) presented
a verbal report on the Work Programme and drew Members attention to the previous
meeting of the Standards Committee and the discussion which had taken place
regarding the Local Government Association Civility in Public Life and the Review of
the Model Code of Conduct, following which it had been agreed to focus the Work
Programme on the Code of Conduct for Members. She informed Members that since
the submission in response to the consultation, nothing had been received in terms of
any proposals in relation to the Code of Conduct. However, plans were in place to

Page 6

9
13.10.2020

Standards Committee

deliver virtual training on the Code of Conduct to District and Parish Councillors, which
would be facilitated using Microsoft Teams.
Discussion took place regarding Microsoft Teams and its accessibility to Co-opted
Members and whether other meeting platforms could be considered. Members agreed
that due regard should be given to the accessibility for all Councillors and Co-optees to
virtual meetings and training.
The Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer) agreed
that virtual meetings and training needed to be inclusive and undertook to clarify the
situation regarding inclusivity of Microsoft Teams Live Events and possible other
options with the IT Lead Specialist.
RESOLVED – That the Work Programme be received.

S/17

CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT
The Chairman, prior to closing the meeting, expressed thanks to all who had
participated and officers for their efforts for facilitating the meeting.

The meeting ended at 7.16 p.m.

Page 7

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 8

Item No.5
South Lakeland District Council
Standards Committee
Tuesday, 20 April 2021

Annual Report 2020/2021
Portfolio:

Cllr Philip Dixon - Customer and Commercial Services and People
Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Monitoring Officer

Report Author:

Linda Fisher – Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist
(Monitoring Officer)

Wards:

(All Wards);

Forward Plan:

N/A

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

That the Committee considers the Annual report for 2020/2021 for a referral to Full
Council.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that the committee consider its draft Annual Report
2020/2021 for referral to Full Council.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

The draft Annual Report, attached at Appendix 1, details the work of the Committee
and the operation of the Council’s Standards Arrangements over the last 12 months.

3.2

To date complaints under the Council’s Standards Arrangements have been
considered under the delegated powers of the Monitoring Officer, and there have
been no referrals to the Standards Committee. The Council’s Standards
Arrangements and terms of reference for the Committee can be found at
https://www.southlakeland.gov.uk/your-council/councillors-and-decisions/codeofconduct.and-standards/standards-regime/standards-committee/.

3.3

Members are requested to consider the Annual Report 2020/21 for referral to
Council. Minor amendments will be made, in consultation with the Chairman of the
Committee, before it is finalised for Council to reflect decisions arising from this
agenda.

3.4

It is appropriate for the Committee to review the Council’s Standards Arrangements
and it is proposed to include this within the constitution review in 2021/2022. Indeed
changes to the Code of Conduct and the Standards Arrangements are separate
items on this agenda.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

Not applicable – the Committee is requested to consider its Annual Report and
provide comments as it feels appropriate.

Page 9

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

The report is to consider and comment.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

Ethical Governance underpin the governance controls of the Council.

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

There are no finance or resource implications arising from this report.

Human Resources
7.2

Not applicable

Legal
7.3

There are no finance or resource implications arising from the report.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental.
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:
There are no issues arising from the report.

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

7.8

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons:
There are no issues arising from this report.

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

That the Council is failing in its
standards arrangements

Poor standards of
behaviour

Monitor and review
arrangements on a regular
basis.

Contact Officers
Monitoringofficer@southlakeland.gov.uk
Linda.Fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Draft Annual Report

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
CMT

Date sent
01/04/2021
01/04/2021
Report author
N/A

Page 10

Date Signed off
01/04/2021
12/04/21
Report author
N/A

Circulated to
Lead Specialist
Human Resources Lead Specialist
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
N/A
N/A
N/A
01/04/2021
01/04/2021
01/04/2021
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Page 11

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12

South Lakeland District Council

2020/21

Annual Report

Page 13

page 1

Foreword from the Chairman
COVID-19 has resulted in the work of the Committee being reduced this last year. It
has seen all Councillors adapt to new ways of working with Virtual Meetings. I would
like to take this opportunity to thank you all for adapting to the new ways of working to
ensure that the Committee could meet this year.
I would like to thank SLDC Councillors and Parish Councillors for their good conduct
this year. I would also like to thank the officers and our Independent Person for all the
work they do to ensure that those complaints and issues which we are able to can be
resolved amicably. I appreciate that with the COVID pandemic that it has been
challenging to adhere to timescales for response to complaints due to competing
priorities for all concerned.
We have replied to the consultation on changing the Councillor Code of Conduct and
all Councillors contributed to this piece of work.
In general, the standard that Councillors uphold and their actions in our area are good.
Indeed my experience of Virtual Meetings has been that, despite occasionally
challenging circumstances, these have been held with respect for each other and our
officers and the high level of debate and scrutiny upheld.

Councillor Matt Severn
Chairman of the Committee

Page 14

1.Introduction – Ethical Standards
The Council has a duty to promote and maintain high standards of conduct by Members and
co-opted members and the Council aims to have the highest possible ethical standards in
place across the Council.
This is a report on ethical standards under the Council’s Standards Arrangements following
implementation of the Localism Act 2011, and considers ethical standards within South
Lakeland for the year to May 2021.
2.Code of Conduct
The Council’s revised Code of Conduct was first approved by Council in June 2012. The Code
was drafted in consultation with Councils across Cumbria. The same Code was adopted by
all principal authorities in Cumbria, and by the majority of Parish and Town Councils.
In June 2013 the Committee undertook a review of the new arrangements, and recommended
that no further changes be made to the Code at the present time other than the revision of the
definitions for the seven general principles of public life as revised by the Committee on
Standards in Public Life in their 14 report on “Standards Matter”.
This year we were asked to respond to consultations taking place on the code of conduct and
we provided a response as a Committee. We will be considering the adoption of the Local
Government Association model code with amendments and making recommendations to the
Council meeting. The Cumbrian Monitoring Officer Group has met and agreed a model code
based on the Local Government Associations model code.
3. Role of Standards Committee/Monitoring Officer/Independent Person/ Parish
Representatives
The Council must demonstrate that it operates high standards of ethical conduct in the way it
carries out its dealings; this applies to both Members and Officers.
The main function of the Standards Committee is to promote and maintain high standards of
conduct and it seeks to ensure that the District Council, and the Town/Parish Councils which
operate within the District, operate within the expected ethical standards of conduct expected
from them.
The Committee fulfils this role by promoting good standards of conduct and ensuring that
training is available on standards of conduct. It also reviews ethical matters, such as the Code
of Conduct and revisions to/ adoption of Protocols, governing the behaviour of officers and
elected Members.
The Standards Committee is operating under its terms of reference as set out in the Council’s
Constitution. It met on two occasions during this reporting year. It was agreed that we would
have a reduced workload this year due to the Council’s necessary focus on addressing the
Covid pandemic.
The Committee also received reports on code of conduct complaints, general complaints and
compliments and the annual report of the Local

Page 15

Government Ombudsman. Further information about these meetings, including agendas,
reports considered and minutes are available on the Council’s website – Standards Committee
Meetings.
Monitoring Officer
Linda Fisher is the Council’s Monitoring Officer (MO) and is supported in her role by the Deputy
Monitoring Officer, Julia Krier.
The role of MO is a statutory role and is required to ensure that the Council, its Members and
officers carry out their functions in a proper and lawful manner and to ensure that high
standards of conduct are promoted and maintained throughout the organisation.
In particular, the MO is responsible for establishing and maintaining the register of District
Councillors’ and Parish Councillors’ interests. She supports the Standards Committee and
makes sure that the Council acts within the law and ensures the Council’s Constitution is
effective.
Independent Person
The Council has appointed David Tweddle as its Independent Person and his appointment
runs until June 2024.
The Standards Committee continues to keep the need for any reserve Independent Person
under review and there are arrangements with neighbouring authorities to call on other
Independent Persons if required.
Parish Representatives
The Committee is able to co-opt up to two parish co-optees, and currently has the Chairman
of the South Lakeland Association of Local Councils and a second representative nominated
by the South Lakeland Association of Local Councils as co-opted members of the Committee.
4. Overview
The Committee continues to ensure that the Council has a robust mechanism in place for
standards arrangements as well as reviewing the Code of Conduct and various
Member/Officer protocols. In addition, there have been numerous training sessions made
available to Councillors and co-optees as well as training offered to parishes across the
District.
The Committee has a rolling work programme with the aim of keeping the ethical framework
under review.
Joint working continues with Cumbrian authorities and CALC to ensure consistency of
approach on the code and practices.
The number of scheduled meetings continues to be satisfactory but additional meetings could
be called if and when required.
5. Complaints against Members
Since 1 April 2020 to the date of this annual review, the Monitoring Officer has processed 10
complaints in total 9 complaints relating to Parish councillors and 1 complaint relating to a
District Councillor. Two matters were referred the police for consideration of potential failures

Page 16

to declare disclosable pecuniary interests the police decided that the matters warranted no
further action. Two matters were resolved by way of informal resolution. The remainder
received decisions of no further action. There is only one outstanding matter at the time of
writing this report.
In addition there were other matters were it was considered that either the alleged
conduct/complaint did not meet the threshold for a Code of Conduct complaint, or where no
formal complaint was submitted and so the matters did not proceed. None of these matters
resulted in any action being taken. No complaints have been forwarded for formal investigation
by the Monitoring Officer.
6. Registration of Interests
The Members’ Register continues to be maintained and updated as and when Members notify
changes. In addition, all Members are sent an annual reminder to update their entries and
confirm the accuracy of the Register. The same applies to the Parish Councillors’ Register of
Interests.
All District Councillors’ interest forms are on the Council’s web page, as are all Parish and
Town Councillor interests. Publication on the Authority’s website and on the relevant
Parish/Town Council’s website, where they have one, is a requirement under the Localism Act
2011.
The Registers are also still available to view in hard copy.
Agendas for all District Council meetings contain an item regarding the disclosure of interests
at the meeting and advising that guidance can be sought, if necessary, from the Monitoring
Officer prior to meetings.
The Minutes of the various Council, Cabinet and Committee meetings show that interests are
regularly declared by Members.
The Parish Registers can provide a challenge in ensuring all Parish/Town Councillors have
submitted an appropriate form.
Other Activity
Monitoring Officer advice has been given to both individual Members and corporately as
required, and to Parish Clerks/Chairmen. Opportunities have been sought and used to deliver
proactive advice to Members to ensure high standards and avoid possible breaches of the
Code. The Monitoring Officer, the Deputy Monitoring Officer and other Officers are available
to advise Members at all reasonable times. The MO has introduced a matrix of interests.
9. Training
Formal training sessions have been provided as requested for Parish/Town Clerks and their
members, with whom liaison is maintained. The Monitoring Officer or Deputy are also available
to visit Parish Councils to discuss the Code and registers of interests.
The District Council and Cumbria Association of Councils have continued to work closely
together around the provision of training and information to parishes.

Page 17

Covid 19 resulted in no requirements to provide Induction Training on the Code of Conduct
however we did provide refresher training to District and Parish Councillors on the Code of
Conduct.
Training on Committees which have quasi-judicial roles e.g. Standards, Planning, Licensing
and Appeals, is now required for Members serving on those Committees and is offered
annually, either as a refresher or for new Committee Members as appropriate.
Training completed:
Date

Training

Members invited

16/12/20

Making Planning
Decisions at
Planning
Committee
Understanding
My Roles as a
Corporate
Parent/
Safeguarding
Code of Conduct
Audit Induction
Planning
Substitute
Training
Audit Induction
HR Committee
Appeals
Refresher

03/12/20

11/11/20
16/11/20
14/10/20
11/09/2020
16/06/2020

18

Number
of attendees
14

Number of
apologies
4

48

14

5

48
1
1

13
1
1

6
0
0

1
9

1
7

0
2

10. Cumbria Group
The Cumbria and Lancaster Monitoring Officers meet as required, and correspond to
discuss key issues. Contacts include Monitoring Officers from both National Parks and
the Police Authority, as well as a representative from CALC.
11. Ombudsman Cases – April 2020 – 2021
The Annual Review Letter from the Ombudsman is expected to be reported to Committee in
September/ October 2021. As highlighted in last year’s annual report, the Ombudsman has
changed the way that it reports on complaints.
There is a distinction between those reports where the Ombudsman produces a formal public
interest report and other categories of recording decisions where there may be fault on the
part of a Council but that it does not meet the requirement for formal reporting.
There have been no public interest reports received. Since April 2020 to April 2021 zero
decisions had been upheld or recorded as maladministration and injustice at pre-report stage
against the Council as the Ombudsman did not find any evidence that the Council had acted
within maladministration As a comparison 45% of decisions for similar councils are upheld.

Page 18

The Committee has also had an overview of the Council Internal Complaints and
Customer Contacts.
12. Constitution of Standards Committee
The membership and functions of the Standards Committee are in accordance with the
Constitution and relevant guidance. The Committee can co-opt up to two Parish Members. It
currently has two Parish Members co-opted onto the Committee with nonvoting rights, and
seven District Members. The Independent Person is able to attend and advise the Committee
as required.
Membership during 2020/2021 was as follows:Councillors:
Tom Harvey
Chris Hogg
Matt Severn (Chairman)
John Holmes
Pete McSweeney
Peter Thornton (Vice-Chair)
Mark Wilson
Parish Members:
David Peters (Member of Natland Parish Council and Chairman of the South Lakeland
Association of Local Councils)
Peter Smillie (South Lakeland District Association of Local Councils)
13. Dispensations
The current dispensations are in place and accessible to view on the Council’s website Councillors’ Register of Interests.
14. Budget
There is limited budget provision to assist in supporting any investigations and training with
regard to standards issues. As no investigations were undertaken during 2020/21, no spend
was required for this.
15. Future Activity
Work Programme:
The Work Programme for 2021/22 will include standing annual items but will evolve as
necessary throughout the year to take account of any developing issues pertaining to
standards.

Page 19

Standards Committee Work Programme April
2021- May 2022

April
2021

May
2021

Sept
2021

Dec
2021

February
2022

May
2022

√

Newly Elected District Councillors Induction
Training
√

√

Refresher Code of Conduct Training/How To be
an Effective Member for District Councillors

√

√

√

Inspect Registers of Interests for District and
Parish Councillors

√

As required
and update the
website

Consider and adjudicate Dispensation
Requests

Establishment of a Council wide Governance and
Accountability working
Group
Review of website

√

√

√

To meet
monthly
√

√

Review of member officer protocol
Review of expiration of all dispensations

Comments

√

Standards Committee Training for new
Members of Standards Committee and
refresher training offered to existing
members

Review of Officers and
Members Gifts
and Hospitality

June
2021

√

√

√

√

√
As part of the
review of the
constitution

√

Receive Annual Ombudsman Report from the
LGO

√

Prepare Annual Report for Full Council

√
On going

Publicise Role and Work of Standards
Committee, and the Effectiveness of Standards
Committee through the Annual Report to full
Council

Continue to raise the profile of the Standards
Committee with Parish and Town Councils

All year

Conduct yearly review of complaints,
comments and compliments procedure

√

Page 20

If you would like a copy of this
document in another format such
as large print, Braille, audio or in
a different language, please call
01539 733333 or email customer
services@southlakeland.gov.uk

page 2

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 22

Item No.6
South Lakeland District Council
Standards Committee
Tuesday, 20 April 2021

Code of Conduct Complaints
Portfolio:

Cllr Philip Dixon – Customer and Commercial Services and People
Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Monitoring Officer

Report Author:

Linda Fisher – Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist
(Monitoring Officer)

Wards:

Not applicable

Forward Plan:

Not applicable

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

That the Standards Committee notes the report of the Monitoring Officer with regards
to complaints under the Council’s Standards Arrangement from October 2020.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

Members are asked to note the report.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

Under the Council’s Standards Arrangements the Monitoring Officer reviews any
complaints received about District or Parish/Town Councillors in respect of the
Member’s Code of Conduct, and after consultation with the Independent Person,
takes a decision as to whether it merits formal investigation.

3.2

Members were last updated in October 2020. There are 5 new complaints that have
been received since October 2020. A further 2 complaints were received that did not
meet the threshold to proceed with a Code of Conduct complaint. Presently there
are 1 active complaint at the date of writing this report. An updated Appendix 1 is
attached.

3.3

Members are asked to note the report.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

Not applicable

5.0

Alternative Options

5.1

There are no alternative options to the report. The report is to note only.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

Good governance links to the Council’s achievement of its Council Plan priorities and
objectives.

Page 23

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

There are no financial implications arising from this report.

Human Resources
7.2

No issues identified.

Legal
7.3

The Council is required to ensure that it accords with the requirements of the
Localism Act 2011.

7.4

The Council has adopted Standards Arrangements within which any complaints
against members are considered. There are no issues to raise in this report.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? Not applicable

Equality and Diversity
7.7

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No, not applicable.

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

That the Council fails to comply
with the requirements of the
Localism Act 2011

Challenge to the Council’s
governance arrangements

Ensure appropriate
arrangements are in place
to ensure compliance with
the legislation.

Contact Officers
Linda Fisher, Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist (Monitoring Officer), 01539
designation, 01539 793370, linda.fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
(delete if no appendices attached)
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Complaints received since October 2020

Background Documents Available
None
Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
CMT

Date sent
Report author
N/A
Report author
N/A

Circulated to
Lead Specialist

Date sent
Report author

Page 24

Date Signed off
01.04.21
N/A
01.04.21
N/A

Circulated to
Human Resources Lead Specialist
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
N/A
N/A
N/A
01.04.21
01.04.21
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26

Appendix 1 – Code of Conduct complaints update - since October 2020

Complaint from
Councillor/officer/
member of the public

Date
received

Nature of
complaint

Complaint
against

File
closed?

Independent
Person
consulted

Local
Resolution?

Outcome

Considered
at Standards
Committee

Complaint
Upheld

Member of the public

02 Sept.
2020
04 June
2020

Standards
of conduct
Standards
of conduct

District
Councillor
Parish
Councillors

Yes

Yes

No

N/A

N/A

Yes

Yes

No

No further
action
No further
action

N/A

N/A

26 Nov
2020
29 Dec
2020
01 Jan
2021
25 Jan
2021
03 Feb
2021

Standards
of conduct
Standards
of conduct
Standards
of conduct
Standards
of conduct
Standards
of conduct

Parish
Councillor
Parish
Councillor
Parish
Councillor
Parish
Councillor
Parish
Councillor

Yes

Yes

No

N/A

N/A

Yes

Yes

Yes

N/A

N/A

Yes

Yes

Yes

N/A

N/A

No

No

TBC

No further
action
No further
action
No further
action
TBC

N/A

N/A

Yes

Yes

No

No further
action

N/A

N/A

Member of the public

Member of the public
Member of the public

Page 27

Member of the public
Member of the public
Member of the public

We have had a couple of complaints (27 November 2020; 04 March 2021) where the matters have not been considered to meet the threshold
to progress a Code of Conduct complaint. We have one outstanding matter and are waiting for a response.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 28

Item No.7
South Lakeland District Council
Standards Committee
Tuesday, 20 April 2021

South Lakeland District Council Code of Conduct,
Arrangements and Guidance Revision
Portfolio:

Cllr Philip Dixon - Customer and Commercial Services and People
Portfolio Holder

Report from:

Linda Fisher – Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist
(Monitoring Officer)

Report Author:

Linda Fisher – Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist
(Monitoring Officer)

Wards:

(All Wards);

Forward Plan:

N/A

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

In December 2020 the Local Government Association published its Model Code of
Conduct for Local Authority Members. This Report recommends adopting the said
Code (with suitable local revisions) together with revisions to the Council’s
Arrangements for Dealing with Code of Conduct Matters and Guidance so as to
implement the Committee for Standards in Public Life’s Best Practice
Recommendations.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that the Standards Committee recommends to Council that it
adopts the LGA Code of Conduct (as amended), the Arrangements for Dealing
with Standards Matters and the Code of Conduct Guidance, as set out in the
Report.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

Members will be aware that in 2019 the Committee on Standards in Public Life
published a Report which reviewed ethical standards in Local Government and set out
several statements of best practice which it recommended should be implemented.
The best practice recommendations are set out in Appendix 1 and the full report can
be accessed by the link in the background papers.

3.2

Many of the recommendations in the Report require changes to legislation and so are
the responsibility of Central Government to implement, however, a number are within
our gift.

3.3

The first recommendation was that the Local Government Association (“LGA”) should
create an updated Model Code of Conduct. The LGA has been working on this
(Members will recall that they had the opportunity to contribute to this via a consultation
process) and the LGA Model Code was published in December 2020. The Council’s
existing Code of Conduct was adopted in 2012 and is broadly similar across all of the
Councils in Cumbria. The county wide consistency worked well so the Cumbrian

Page 29

Monitoring Officers have worked together on the Model Code to make appropriate local
amendments (the Model Code is promoted as a template to be amended for local
circumstances).
3.4

This Report contains sections on the Best Practice Recommendations and then deals
with how our documentation may be amended. If the recommendations suggested are
approved then the Council will be fully compliant with all of the best practice
recommendations.

4.0 Best practice recommendations and our response
Recommendation

Response

1

Local authorities should include prohibitions on
bullying and harassment in codes of conduct.
These should include a definition of bullying and
harassment, supplemented with a list of
examples of the sort of behaviour covered by
such a definition.

The existing code dealt with
this but the proposed
revisions do so more
explicitly.

2

Councils should include provisions in their code
of conduct requiring councillors to comply with
any formal standards investigation, and
prohibiting trivial or malicious allegations by
councillors.

The proposed Code does
this and there is a filtration
process to stop trivial and
malicious allegations by any
person.

3

Principal authorities should review their code of
conduct each year and regularly seek, where
possible, the views of the public, community
organisations and neighbouring authorities.

We will do this in future.

4

An authority’s code should be readily accessible
to both councillors and the public, in a prominent
position on a council’s website and available in
council premises.

It is.

5

Local authorities should update their gifts and
hospitality register at least once per quarter, and
publish it in an accessible format, such as CSV.

The Council’s register is
maintained on an ongoing
basis. We will be improving
communications regarding
this and awareness.

6

Councils should publish a clear and
straightforward public interest test against which
allegations are filtered.

Included in the proposed
revisions.

7

Local authorities should have access to at least
two Independent Persons.

The Council has one
Independent Persons.

8

An Independent Person should be consulted as
to whether to undertake a formal investigation on
an allegation, and should be given the option to
review and comment on allegations which the
responsible officer is minded to dismiss as being
without merit, vexatious, or trivial.

The Council’s arrangements
for dealing with Code of
Conduct matters already
includes this provision.

9

Where a local authority makes a decision on an
allegation of misconduct following a formal

The Council’s arrangements
currently deal with

Page 30

investigation, a decision notice should be
published as soon as possible on its website,
including a brief statement of facts, the
provisions of the code engaged by the
allegations, the view of the Independent Person,
the reasoning of the decision-maker, and any
sanction applied.

publication but are
recommended to be
extended so as to comply
with the additional
suggestions.

10

A local authority should have straightforward and
accessible guidance on its website on how to
make a complaint under the code of conduct, the
process for handling complaints, and estimated
timescales for investigations and outcomes.

This information is on the
Council’s website.

11

Formal standards complaints about the conduct
of a parish councillor towards a clerk should be
made by the chair or by the parish council as a
whole, rather than the clerk in all but exceptional
circumstances.

This needs to be adressed.

12

Monitoring Officers’ roles should include
providing advice, support and management of
investigations and adjudications on alleged
breaches to parish councils within the remit of
the principal authority. They should be provided
with adequate training, corporate support and
resources to undertake this work.

The Council’s Monitoring
Officer fulfils this role.

13

A local authority should have procedures in place
to address any conflicts of interest when
undertaking a standards investigation. Possible
steps should include asking the Monitoring
Officer from a different authority to undertake the
investigation.

The suggested
arrangements deal with this
recommendation.

14

Councils should report on separate bodies they
have set up or which they own as part of their
annual governance statement, and give a full
picture of their relationship with those bodies.
Separate bodies created by local authorities
should abide by the Nolan principle of openness,
and publish their board agendas and minutes
and annual reports in an accessible place.

This will be addressed.
Nolan Principles
1. Selflessness. Holders of
public office should act
solely in terms of the public
interest. ...
2. Integrity. Holders of public
office must avoid placing
themselves under any
obligation to people or
organisations that might try
inappropriately to influence
them in their work.
3. Objectivity. ...
4. Accountability. ...
5. Openness. ...
6. Honesty. ...
7. Leadership.

Page 31

15

Senior officers should meet regularly with
political group leaders or group whips to discuss
standards issues.

This will be addressed.

5.0

Code of Conduct (Appendix 2)

5.1

The Model Code of Conduct with suggested amendments is shown as Appendix 2 of
the Report. The amendments are shown via tracked changes to make it easier for
Members to see where the suggestions have been made.

5.2
5.3

Hopefully the changes are self explanatory but providing some additional detail:
Paragraph 7.2 deals with the use of Council resources for political purposes. At the
moment the position is clear, Members may not use Council resources to promote any
particular political party. The Cumbrian Monitoring Officers are of the opinion that the
suggested wording in the LGA Model Code would introduce ambiguity where none
currently exists, hence the suggested amendment.

5.4

Paragraph 10.2 covers the value of gifts/hospitality to be recorded. Members have
previously discussed this and felt £25 was an appropriate amount. Members may wish
to revisit or reaffirm the amount.

5.5

In relation to matters where Members disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest, the
amendment to the proposed code continues the current arrangement whereby if the
public has the right to speak then so does the Member. The Member, having spoken,
then must leave the room/meeting. This ensures that Members do not have fewer
rights than they would do as ordinary members of the public.

5.6

In relation to other declarations of interest (non-pecuniary) the LGA Code requires the
Member to leave the room/meeting. However, this goes further than the law requires
and is unnecessary; not participating when it would be inappropriate to do so is the
more important point.

5.7

In paragraph 9 on page 13 of the Code, the LGA attempts to revert to the pre 2012
Statutory Code of Conduct. The test as to whether a Member’s financial position is
affected “to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision” is too imprecise a test to apply. The
suggested local amendment of whether an ordinary member of the public would
believe the Member’s judgement be affected is a far clearer, objective judgement and
should be easier to apply and use.

6.0

Arrangements for dealing with Standards Matters (Appendix 3)

6.1

Section 28(6) of the Localism Act 2011 requires that the Council must have in place
arrangements under which investigations can be investigated and under which
decisions on allegations can be made. This will be to follow.

7.0

Code of Conduct Guidance (Appendix 4)

7.1

The suggested Guidance includes new sections on Bullying and Harassment

8.0

Consultation

8.1

The Local Government Association carried out a wide consultation when formulating
its proposed Code of Conduct. This was promoted with Members at the time in order

Page 32

that they could contribute. The suggested Code and amendments have been
consulted upon and discussed by the Cumbrian Monitoring Officers. The Council’s
appointed Independent Person has also been consulted and their advice will be given
via the Monitoring Officer at the Meeting.
8.2

The report has been submitted to the Chairman of the Council and the Leaders of the
Political Groups.

9.0

Alternative Options

9.1

There are not considered to be other alternatives to consideration of the revisions to
the code and guidance.

10.0

Links to Council Priorities

10.1

The Code of Conduct and guidance is an integral part of ensuring that the Council has
strong ethical standards and behaviour required to deliver the Council’s Corporate
Priorites.

11.0

Implications
Financial, Resources and Procurement

11.1

There are no financial implications arising from this report.
Human Resources

11.2

There are no Human Resources implications arising from this report.
Legal

11.3

The Council is required to ensure that it accords with the requirements of the
Localism Act 2011.
Health, Social, Economic and Environmental

11.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

11.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
is not considered to be required.
Equality and Diversity

11.6

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

11.7

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: This
is not considered to be required.
Risk

11.8

The risk to the Council in not implementing the proposed changes is that it will fall
behind the recommended best practice in the area of our ethical conduct practice,
policies and procedures.

Contact Officers
linda.fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk

Page 33

Appendices Attached to this Report

Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Recommendations of the Committee for Standards in Public Life

2

Proposed Code of Conduct

3

Proposed Arrangements for Dealing with Standards Matters.

4

Proposed revised Guidance for Standards Matters

Background Documents Available
Name of Background document

Where it is available

Local Government Ethical
Standards Report

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/localgovernment-ethical-standards-report

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
CMT

Date sent
01/04/2021
01/04/2021
Report Author
01/04/2021

Circulated to
Lead Specialist
Human Resources Lead Specialist
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
N/A
N/A
N/A
01/04/2021
01/04/2021
01/04/2021
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Page 34

Date Signed off
01/04/2021
01/04/2021
01/04/2021
08/04/2021

Appendix 1
List of recommendations

List of recommendations
Number

14

Recommendation

Responsible body

1

The Local Government Association should create an
updated model code of conduct, in consultation with
representative bodies of councillors and officers of all tiers
of local government.

Local Government
Association

Government

2

The government should ensure that candidates standing
for or accepting public offices are not required publicly
to disclose their home address. The Relevant Authorities
(Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 should
be amended to clarify that a councillor does not need to
register their home address on an authority’s register of
interests.

Government

3

Councillors should be presumed to be acting in an official
capacity in their public conduct, including statements
on publicly-accessible social media. Section 27(2) of the
Localism Act 2011 should be amended to permit local
authorities to presume so when deciding upon code of
conduct breaches.

Government

4

Section 27(2) of the Localism Act 2011 should be
amended to state that a local authority’s code of conduct
applies to a member when they claim to act, or give the
impression they are acting, in their capacity as a member
or as a representative of the local authority.

Government

5

The Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests)
Regulations 2012 should be amended to include: unpaid
directorships; trusteeships; management roles in a charity
or a body of a public nature; and membership of any
organisations that seek to influence opinion or public
policy.

Government

6

Local authorities should be required to establish a register
of gifts and hospitality, with councillors required to record
any gifts and hospitality received over a value of £50,
or totalling £100 over a year from a single source. This
requirement should be included in an updated model
code of conduct.

Page 35

List of recommendations

Number

Recommendation

Responsible body
Government

7

Section 31 of the Localism Act 2011 should be repealed,
and replaced with a requirement that councils include in
their code of conduct that a councillor must not participate
in a discussion or vote in a matter to be considered at a
meeting if they have any interest, whether registered or
not, “if a member of the public, with knowledge of the
relevant facts, would reasonably regard the interest as so
significant that it is likely to prejudice your consideration or
decision-making in relation to that matter”.
The Localism Act 2011 should be amended to require
that Independent Persons are appointed for a fixed term
of two years, renewable once.

Government

8

Government

9

The Local Government Transparency Code should be
updated to provide that the view of the Independent
Person in relation to a decision on which they are
consulted should be formally recorded in any decision
notice or minutes.

Government

10

A local authority should only be able to suspend a
councillor where the authority’s Independent Person
agrees both with the finding of a breach and that
suspending the councillor would be a proportionate
sanction.

11

Local authorities should provide legal indemnity to
Independent Persons if their views or advice are
disclosed. The government should require this through
secondary legislation if needed.

Government / all
local authorities

Government

12

Local authorities should be given the discretionary power
to establish a decision-making standards committee with
voting independent members and voting members from
dependent parishes, to decide on allegations and impose
sanctions.

Government

13

Councillors should be given the right to appeal to the
Local Government Ombudsman if their local authority
imposes a period of suspension for breaching the code
of conduct.

Page 36

15

List of recommendations

Number

16

Recommendation

Responsible body
Government

14

The Local Government Ombudsman should be given
the power to investigate and decide upon an allegation
of a code of conduct breach by a councillor, and the
appropriate sanction, on appeal by a councillor who has
had a suspension imposed. The Ombudsman’s decision
should be binding on the local authority.

Government

15

The Local Government Transparency Code should be
updated to require councils to publish annually: the
number of code of conduct complaints they receive; what
the complaints broadly relate to (e.g. bullying; conflict of
interest); the outcome of those complaints, including if
they are rejected as trivial or vexatious; and any sanctions
applied.

16

Local authorities should be given the power to suspend
councillors, without allowances, for up to six months.

Government
Government

17

The government should clarify if councils may lawfully bar
councillors from council premises or withdraw facilities as
sanctions. These powers should be put beyond doubt in
legislation if necessary.

18

The criminal offences in the Localism Act 2011 relating to
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests should be abolished.

Government

Parish council clerks should hold an appropriate
qualification, such as those provided by the Society of
Local Council Clerks.

Parish councils

19

Government

20

Section 27(3) of the Localism Act 2011 should be
amended to state that parish councils must adopt the
code of conduct of their principal authority, with the
necessary amendments, or the new model code.

Government

21

Section 28(11) of the Localism Act 2011 should be
amended to state that any sanction imposed on a parish
councillor following the finding of a breach is to be
determined by the relevant principal authority.

Government

22

The Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England)
(Amendment) Regulations 2015 should be amended to
provide that disciplinary protections for statutory officers
extend to all disciplinary action, not just dismissal.

Page 37

List of recommendations

Number

Recommendation

Responsible body
Government

23

The Local Government Transparency Code should be
updated to provide that local authorities must ensure that
their whistleblowing policy specifies a named contact for
the external auditor alongside their contact details, which
should be available on the authority’s website.

24

Councillors should be listed as ‘prescribed persons’ for
the purposes of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 1998.

Government

Councillors should be required to attend formal induction
training by their political groups. National parties should
add such a requirement to their model group rules.

Political groups

Local Government Association corporate peer reviews
should also include consideration of a local authority’s
processes for maintaining ethical standards.

Local Government
Association

25

26

Page 38

National political
parties

17

Appendix 2

Local Government Association Model
South Lakeland District Council
Councillor Code of Conduct 20210
Joint statement
The role of councillor across all tiers of local government is a vital part of our country’s
system of democracy. It is important that as councillors we can be held accountable and all
adopt the behaviors and responsibilities associated with the role. Our conduct as an
individual councillor affects the reputation of all councillors. We want the role of councillor to
be one that people aspire to. We also want individuals from a range of backgrounds and
circumstances to be putting themselves forward to become councillors.
As councillors, we represent local residents, work to develop better services and deliver
local change. The public have high expectations of us and entrust us to represent our local
area; taking decisions fairly, openly, and transparently. We have both an individual and
collective responsibility to meet these expectations by maintaining high standards and
demonstrating good conduct, and by challenging behaviour which falls below expectations.
Importantly, we should be able to undertake our role as a councillor without being
intimidated, abused, bullied or threatened by anyone, including the general public.
This Code has been designed to protect our democratic role, encourage good conduct and
safeguard the public’s trust in local government.

23.12.2020

Page 1 of 17

Page 39

Introduction
The Local Government Association (LGA) has developed this Model Councillor Code of
Conduct, in association with key partners and after extensive consultation with the sector,
as part of its work on supporting all tiers of local government to continue to aspire to high
standards of leadership and performance. It is a template for councils to adopt in whole
and/or with local amendments.
All councils are required to have a local Councillor Code of Conduct.
The LGA will undertake an annual review of this Code to ensure it continues to be fit- forpurpose, incorporating advances in technology, social media and changes in legislation. The
LGA can also offer support, training and mediation to councils and councillors on the
application of the Code and the National Association of Local Councils (NALC) and the
county associations of local councils can offer advice and support to town and parish
councils.
Definitions
For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, a “councillor” means a member or co-opted
member of a local authority or a directly elected mayor. A “co-opted member” is defined in
the Localism Act 2011 Section 27(4) as “a person who is not a member of the authority but
who

a) is a member of any committee or sub-committee of the authority, or;
b) is a member of, and represents the authority on, any joint committee or joint subcommittee of the authority;

and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any meeting of that
committee or sub-committee”.
For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, “local authority” includes county councils, district
councils, London borough councils, parish councils, town councils, fire and rescue
authorities, police authorities, joint authorities, economic prosperity boards, combined
authorities and National Park authorities.
Purpose of the Code of Conduct
The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to assist you, as a councillor, in modelling the
behaviour that is expected of you, to provide a personal check and balance, and to set out
the type of conduct that could lead to action being taken against you. It is also to protect
you, the public, fellow councillors, local authority officers and the reputation of local
government. It sets out general principles of conduct expected of all councillors and your
specific obligations in relation to standards of conduct. The LGA encourages the use of
support, training and mediation prior to action being taken using the Code. The
fundamental aim of the Code is to create and maintain public confidence in the role of
councillor and local government.

23.12.2020

Page 2 of 17

Page 40

General principles of councillor conduct
Everyone in public office at all levels; all who serve the public or deliver public services,
including ministers, civil servants, councillors and local authority officers; should uphold
the Seven Principles of Public Life, also known as the Nolan Principles.
Building on these principles, the following general principles have been developed
specifically for the role of councillor.
In accordance with the public trust placed in me, on all occasions:






I act with integrity and honesty
I act lawfully
I treat all persons fairly and with respect; and
I lead by example and act in a way that secures public confidence in the role of
councillor.

In undertaking my role:

 I impartially exercise my responsibilities in the interests of the local community
 I do not improperly seek to confer an advantage, or disadvantage, on any
person

 I avoid conflicts of interest
 I exercise reasonable care and diligence; and
• I ensure that public resources are used prudently in accordance with my local
authority’s requirements and in the public interest.

Application of the Code of Conduct
This Code of Conduct applies to you as soon as you sign your declaration of acceptance of
the office of councillor or attend your first meeting as a co-opted member and continues to
apply to you until you cease to be a councillor.
This Code of Conduct applies to you when you are acting in your capacity as a councillor
which may include when:
 you misuse your position as a councillor
 Your actions would give the impression to a reasonable member of the public with
knowledge of all the facts that you are acting as a councillor;
The Code applies to all forms of communication and interaction, including:

23.12.2020

Page 3 of 17

Page 41

 at face-to-face meetings
 at online or telephone meetings
 in written communication
 in verbal communication
 in non-verbal communication
 in electronic and social media communication, posts, statements and
comments.

You are also expected to uphold high standards of conduct and show leadership at all times
when acting as a councillor.
Your Monitoring Officer has statutory responsibility for the implementation of the Code of
Conduct, and you are encouraged to seek advice from your Monitoring Officer on any
matters that may relate to the Code of Conduct. Town and parish councillors are
encouraged to seek advice from their Clerk, who may refer matters to the Monitoring
Officer.
Standards of councillor conduct
This section sets out your obligations, which are the minimum standards of conduct required
of you as a councillor. Should your conduct fall short of these standards, a complaint may
be made against you, which may result in action being taken.
Guidance is included to help explain the reasons for the obligations and how they should be
followed.
General Conduct

1. Respect
As a councillor:

1.1 I treat other councillors and members of the public with respect.
1.2 I treat local authority employees, employees and representatives of partner

organisations and those volunteering for the local authority with respect and
respect the role they play.

Respect means politeness and courtesy in behaviour, speech, and in the written word.
Debate and having different views are all part of a healthy democracy. As a councillor, you
can express, challenge, criticise and disagree with views, ideas, opinions and policies in a
robust but civil manner. You should not, however, subject individuals, groups of people or
organisations to personal attack.

23.12.2020

Page 4 of 17

Page 42

In your contact with the public, you should treat them politely and courteously. Rude and
offensive behaviour lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in councillors.
In return, you have a right to expect respectful behaviour from the public. If members of the
public are being abusive, intimidatory or threatening you are entitled to stop any
conversation or interaction in person or online and report them to the local authority, the
relevant social media provider or the police. This also applies to fellow councillors, where
action could then be taken under the Councillor Code of Conduct, and local authority
employees, where concerns should be raised in line with the local authority’s councillorofficer protocol.

2. Bullying, harassment and discrimination
As a councillor:

2.1 I do not bully any person.
2.2 I do not harass any person.
2.3 I promote equalities and do not discriminate unlawfully against any
person.

The Advisory, Conciliation and Arbitration Service (ACAS) characterises bullying as
offensive, intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour, an abuse or misuse of power
through means that undermine, humiliate, denigrate or injure the recipient. Bullying might be
a regular pattern of behaviour or a one-off incident, happen face-to-face, on social media, in
virtual meetings, emails or phone calls, happen in the workplace or at work social events
and may not always be obvious or noticed by others.
The Protection from Harassment Act 1997 defines harassment as conduct that causes
alarm or distress or puts people in fear of violence and must involve such conduct on at least
two occasions. It can include repeated attempts to impose unwanted communications and
contact upon a person in a manner that could be expected to cause distress or fear in any
reasonable person.
Unlawful discrimination is where someone is treated unfairly because of a protected
characteristic. Protected characteristics are specific aspects of a person's
identity defined by the Equality Act 2010. They are age, disability, gender reassignment,
marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity, race, religion or belief, sex and
sexual orientation.
The Equality Act 2010 places specific duties on local authorities. Councillors have a central
role to play in ensuring that equality issues are integral to the local authority's performance
and strategic aims, and that there is a strong vision and public commitment to equality
across public services.

23.12.2020

Page 5 of 17

Page 43

3. Impartiality of officers of the council
As a councillor:

3.1 I do not compromise, or attempt to compromise, the impartiality of
anyone who works for, or on behalf of, the local authority.

Officers work for the local authority as a whole and must be politically neutral (unless they
are political assistants). They should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a way that would
undermine their neutrality. You can question officers in order to understand, for example,
their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the content of a report that they
have written. However, you must not try and force them to act differently, change their
advice, or alter the content of that report, if doing so would prejudice their professional
integrity.

4. Confidentiality and access to information
As a councillor:

4.1 I do not disclose information:
a. given to me in confidence by anyone
b. acquired by me which I believe, or ought reasonably to be

aware, is of a confidential nature, unless
i. I have received the consent of a person authorised to give it;
ii. I am required by law to do so;
iii. the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of
obtaining professional legal advice provided that the third
party agrees not to disclose the information to any other
person; or
iv. the disclosure is:
1. reasonable and in the public interest; and
2. made in good faith and in compliance with the
reasonable requirements of the local authority; and
3. I have consulted the Monitoring Officer prior to its
release.

4.2 I do not improperly use knowledge gained solely as a result of my role as a
councillor for the advancement of myself, my friends, my family members,
my employer or my business interests.

4.3 I do not prevent anyone from getting information that they are entitled to by
law.

Local authorities must work openly and transparently, and their proceedings and printed
materials are open to the public, except in certain legally defined circumstances. You should
work on this basis, but there will be times when it is required by law that discussions,
documents and other information relating to or held by the local authority must be treated in
a confidential manner. Examples include personal data relating to individuals or information
relating to ongoing negotiations.

23.12.2020

Page 6 of 17

Page 44

5. Disrepute
As a councillor:

5.1 I do not bring my role or local authority into disrepute.
As a Councillorcouncillor, you are trusted to make decisions on behalf of your community
and your actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than that of ordinary
members of the public. You should be aware that your actions might have an adverse
impact on you, other councillors and/or your local authority and may lower the public’s
confidence in your or your local authority’s ability to discharge your/it’s functions. For
example, behaviour that is considered dishonest and/or deceitful can bring your local
authority into disrepute.
You are able to hold the local authority and fellow councillors to account and are able to
constructively challenge and express concern about decisions and processes undertaken by
the council whilst continuing to adhere to other aspects of this Code of Conduct.

6. Use of position
As a councillor:

6.1 I do not use, or attempt to use, my position improperly to the advantage or
disadvantage of myself or anyone else.

Your position as a member of the local authority provides you with certain opportunities,
responsibilities and privileges, and you make choices all the time that will impact others.
However, you should not take advantage of these opportunities to further your own or
others’ private interests or to disadvantage anyone unfairly.

7. Use of local authority resources and facilities
As a councillor:

7.1 I do not misuse council resources.
7.2 I will, when using the resources of the local or authorising their use by

others:
a.
act in accordance with the local authority's requirements; and
b.
ensure that such resources are not used for political purposes. unless
that use could reasonably be regarded as likely to facilitate, or be
conducive to, the discharge of the functions of the local authority or of
the office to which I have been elected or appointed.

You may be provided with resources and facilities by the local authority to assist you in
carrying out your duties as a councillor.
Examples include:

•
•
•
•
•

office support
stationery
equipment such as phones, and computers
transport
access and use of local authority buildings and rooms.

23.12.2020

Page 7 of 17

Page 45

These are given to you to help you carry out your role as a councillor more effectively and
are not to be used for business or personal gain. They should be used in accordance with
the purpose for which they have been provided and the local authority’s own policies
regarding their use.

8. Complying with the Code of Conduct
As a Councillor:

8.1 I undertake Code of Conduct training provided by my local authority.
8.2 I cooperate with any Code of Conduct investigation and/or
determination.

8.3 I do not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to be
involved with the administration of any investigation or proceedings.

8.4 I comply with any sanction imposed on me following a finding that I have
breached the Code of Conduct.

It is extremely important for you as a councillor to demonstrate high standards, for you to
have your actions open to scrutiny and for you not to undermine public trust in the local
authority or its governance. If you do not understand or are concerned about the local
authority’s processes in handling a complaint you should raise this with your Monitoring
Officer.
Protecting your reputation and the reputation of the local authority

9. Interests
As a councillor:

9.1 I register and disclose my interests.
Section 29 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Monitoring Officer to establish and
maintain a register of interests of members of the authority .
You need to register your interests so that the public, local authority employees and fellow
councillors know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict of interest. The register
is a public document that can be consulted when (or before) an issue arises. The register
also protects you by allowing you to demonstrate openness and a willingness to be held
accountable. You are personally responsible for deciding whether or not you should
disclose an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for you to know early on if others think
that a potential conflict might arise. It is also important that the public know about any
interest that might have to be disclosed by you or other councillors when making or taking
part in decisions, so that decision making is seen by the public as open and honest. This
helps to ensure that public confidence in the integrity of local governance is maintained.
You should note that failure to register or disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest as set
out in Table 1, is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011.
Appendix B sets out the detailed provisions on registering and disclosing interests. If in
doubt, you should always seek advice from your Monitoring Officer.

23.12.2020

Page 8 of 17

Page 46

10. Gifts and hospitality
As a councillor:

10.1

I do not accept gifts or hospitality, irrespective of estimated value, which
could give rise to real or substantive personal gain or a reasonable
suspicion of influence on my part to show favour from persons seeking to
acquire, develop or do business with the local authority or from persons
who may apply to the local authority for any permission, licence or other
significant advantage.

10.2

I register with the Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality with an
estimated value of at least £2550 within 28 days of its receipt.

10.3

I register with the Monitoring Officer any significant gift or
hospitality with an estimated value of at least £25 that I have
been offered but have refused to accept.

In order to protect your position and the reputation of the local authority, you should
exercise caution in accepting any gifts or hospitality which are (or which you reasonably
believe to be) offered to you because you are a councillor. The presumption should always
be not to accept significant gifts or hospitality. However, there may be times when such a
refusal may be difficult if it is seen as rudeness in which case you could accept it but must
ensure it is publicly registered. However, you do not need to register gifts and hospitality
which are not related to your role as a councillor, such as Christmas gifts from your friends
and family. It is also important to note that it is appropriate to accept normal expenses and
hospitality associated with your duties as a councillor. If you are unsure, do contact your
Monitoring Officer for guidance.

23.12.2020

Page 9 of 17

Page 47

Appendices
Appendix A – The Seven Principles of Public Life
The principles are:
Selflessness
Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public interest.
Integrity
Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any obligation to people or
organisations that might try inappropriately to influence them in their work. They should not
act or take decisions in order to gain financial or other material benefits for themselves,
their family, or their friends. They must disclose and resolve any interests and relationships.
Objectivity
Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly and on merit, using
the best evidence and without discrimination or bias.
Accountability
Holders of public office are accountable to the public for their decisions and actions and
must submit themselves to the scrutiny necessary to ensure this.
Openness
Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and transparent manner.
Information should not be withheld from the public unless there are clear and lawful
reasons for so doing.
Honesty
Holders of public office should be truthful.
Leadership
Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own behaviour. They should
actively promote and robustly support the principles and be willing to challenge poor
behaviour wherever it occurs.

23.12.2020

Page 10 of 17

Page 48

Appendix B Registering
interests
Within 28 days of becoming a member or your re-election or re-appointment to office you must
register with the Monitoring Officer the interests which fall within the categories set out in
Table 1 (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) which are as described in “The Relevant
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012”. You should also register
details of your other personal interests which fall within the categories set out in Table 2
(Other Registerable Interests).
“Disclosable pecuniary interest” means an interest of yourself, or of your partner if you are
aware of your partner's interest, within the descriptions set out in Table 1 below.
"Partner" means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as husband
or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners.

1. You must ensure that your register of interests is kept up-to-date and within 28
days of becoming aware of any new interest, or of any change to a registered
interest, notify the Monitoring Officer.

2. A ‘sensitive interest’ is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the

councillor, or a person connected with the councillor, being subject to violence
or intimidation.

3. Where you have a ‘sensitive interest’ you must notify the Monitoring Officer with
the reasons why you believe it is a sensitive interest. If the Monitoring Officer
agrees they will withhold the interest from the public register.

Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest

4. Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Disclosable

Pecuniary Interests as set out in Table 1, you must disclose the interest, not
participate in any discussion or vote on the matter and must not remain in the
room/meeting unless you have been granted a dispensation. In addition, you may
speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak and
having spoken you must leave the room/meeting. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do
not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an interest.
Dispensation may be granted in limited circumstances, to enable you to participate
and vote on a matter in which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest.

5. Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest on a matter to be considered or is

being considered by you as an Cabinet Executive member in exercise of your
executive function, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not
take any steps or further steps in the matter apart from arranging for someone else to
deal with it

Disclosure of Other Registrable Interests

5.6.Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your Other

23.12.2020

Page 11 of 17

Page 49

Registrable Interests (as set out in Table 2), you must disclose the interest. If you
have such an interest you must consider whether a reasonable member of the public,
knowing all the facts, would think the interest such that it may influence the way you
vote. If the ordinary person would think that the interest may influence your vote then
you should not participate in the matter. In these circumstances you may speak on
the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting but
otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter. If it is a
‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest

23.12.2020

Page 12 of 17

Page 50

.
Disclosure of Non- R e g i s t e r a b l e Interests

6.7.Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to your financial interest

or well-being (and is not a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest set out in Table 1) or a
financial interest or well-being of a relative or close associate, you must disclose the
interest. You may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed
to speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote
on the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a
dispensation. If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of
the interest.

7.8.Where a matter arises at a meeting which affects –
a. your own financial interest or well-being;
b. a financial interest or well-being of a friend, relative, close associate; or
c. a body included in those you need to disclose under
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in Table 1

you must disclose the interest. In order to determine whether you may participate
in the meetingyou can remain in the meeting after disclosing your interest the
following test should be applied:

8.9.Where a matter affects your financial interest or well-being so that a reasonable

member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it may affect your view of
the wider public interest.:
a. to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests of the majority of
inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision and;
b.a.
a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe
that it would affect your view of the wider public interest
Yyou may speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to
speak at the meeting but otherwise must not take part in any discussion or vote on
the matter and must not remain in the room unless you have been granted a
dispensation.
If it is a ‘sensitive interest’, you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest.

9.10.

Where you have a personal interest in any business of your authority and you
have made an executive decision in relation to that business, you must make sure
that any written statement of that decision records the existence and nature of your
interest.

23.12.2020

Page 13 of 17

Page 51

Table 1: Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
This table sets out the explanation of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests as set out in the
Relevant Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012.
Subject
Employment, office, trade,
profession or vocation

Description
Any employment, office, trade,
profession or vocation carried on for
profit or gain.
[Any unpaid directorship.]

Sponsorship

Any payment or provision of any other
financial benefit (other than from the
council) made to the councillor during the
previous 12-month period for expenses
incurred by him/her in carrying out
his/her duties as a councillor, or towards
his/her election expenses.
This includes any payment or financial
benefit from a trade union within the
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

Contracts

Any contract made between the
councillor or his/her spouse or civil
partner or the person with whom the

23.12.2020

Page 14 of 17

Page 52

councillor is living as if they were
spouses/civil partners (or a firm in which
such person is a partner, or an incorporated
body of which such person is a director* or
a body that such person has a beneficial
interest in the securities of*) and the council
—
(a) under which goods or services are to be
provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.
Land and Property

Any beneficial interest in land which is
within the area of the council.
‘Land’ excludes an easement, servitude,
interest or right in or over land which does
not give the councillor or his/her spouse or
civil partner or the person with whom the
councillor is living as if they were spouses/
civil partners (alone or jointly with another)
a right to occupy or to receive income.

Licenses

Any licence (alone or jointly with others) to
occupy land in the area of the council for a
month or longer

Corporate tenancies

Any tenancy where (to the councillor’s
knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the council; and
(b) the tenant is a body that the councillor,
or his/her spouse or civil partner or the
person with whom the councillor is living as
if they were spouses/ civil partners is a
partner of or a director* of or has a
beneficial interest in the securities* of.

Securities

Any beneficial interest in securities* of a
body where—
(a) that body (to the councillor’s
knowledge) has a place of business or
land in the area of the council; and
(b) either—
(i) ) the total nominal value of the
securities* exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share
capital of that body; or
(ii) if the share capital of that body is of
more than one class, the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class in
which the councillor, or his/ her spouse or
civil partner or the person with whom the
councillor is living as if they were

23.12.2020

Page 15 of 17

Page 53

spouses/civil partners has a beneficial
interest exceeds one hundredth of the
total issued share capital of that class.
* ‘director’ includes a member of the committee of management of an industrial and

provident society.

* ‘securities’ means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a

collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets Act
2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a building
society.

Table 2: Other Registerable Interests
You have a personal interest in any business of your authority where it relates to or is
likely to affect:
a) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you
are nominated or appointed by your authority
b) any body
(i) exercising functions of a public nature
(ii) any body directed to charitable purposes or
(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion
or policy (including any political party or trade union)

23.12.2020

Page 16 of 17

Page 54

23.12.2020

Page 17 of 17

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56

Appendix 3 ( Please note this Appendix contains
Appendices)
South Lakeland District Council
Arrangements for dealing with standards allegations under
the Localism Act 2011
1

Context
These “Arrangements” set out how you may make a complaint that an elected or co-opted
member of this authority [or of a parish council within its area] has failed to comply with the
authority’s Code of Conduct, and sets out how the authority will deal with allegations of a
failure to comply with the authority’s Code of Conduct.
Under Section 28(6) and (7) of the Localism Act 2011, the Council must have in place
“arrangements” under which allegations that a member or co-opted member of the authority
[or of a parish council within the authority’s area], or of a Committee or Sub-Committee of
the authority, has failed to comply with that authority’s Code of Conduct can be investigated
and decisions made on such allegations.
Such arrangements must provide for the authority to appoint at least one Independent
Person, whose views must be sought by the authority before it takes a decision on an
allegation which it has decided shall be investigated, and whose views can be sought by
the authority at any other stage, or by a member [or a member or co-opted member of a
parish council] against whom an allegation has been made.

2

The Code of Conduct
The Council has adopted a Code of Conduct for members, which is attached as Appendix
One to these arrangements and available for inspection on the authority’s website and on
request from Reception at the Council Offices, South Lakeland House, Lowther Street,
Kendal.
Each parish council is also required to adopt a Code of Conduct. If you wish to inspect a
Parish Council’s Code of Conduct, you should do so by going to the inspect any website
operated by the parish council and request the parish clerk to allow you to inspect the
parish council’s Code of Conduct.

3

Making a complaint
If you wish to make a complaint, please write or email to –
Monitoring Officer
South Lakeland District Council,
South Lakeland House,
Lowther Street,
Kendal,
Cumbria, LA9 4UQ

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 57

Or –
monitoringofficer@southlakeland.gov.uk
The Monitoring Officer is a senior officer of the authority who has statutory responsibility for
maintaining the register of members’ interests and who is responsible for administering the
system in respect of complaints of member misconduct.
In order to ensure that we have all the information which we need to be able to process
your complaint, please complete and send us the model complaint form, which can be
downloaded from the authority’s website, next to the Code of Conduct, and is available on
request from Reception at the main council Offices.
Please do provide us with your name and a contact address or email address, so that we
can acknowledge receipt of your complaint and keep you informed of its progress. If you
want to keep your name and address confidential, please indicate this in the space
provided on the complaint form, in which case we will not disclose your name and address
to the member against whom you make the complaint, without your prior consent. The
authority does not normally investigate anonymous complaints, unless there is a clear
public interest in doing so.
The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of your complaint within 5 working days of
receiving it, and will keep you informed of the progress of your complaint.
The Monitoring Officer will seek to identify any conflicts of interest which may arise at any
stage of the process and put alternative arrangements in place as appropriate.
4

Will your complaint be investigated?
The Monitoring Officer will review every complaint received and, after consultation with the
Independent Person, take a decision as to whether it merits formal investigation. This
decision will normally be taken within 10 working days of receipt of your complaint. Where
the Monitoring Officer has taken a decision, he/she will inform you of his/her decision and
the reasons for that decision.
In certain cases the Monitoring Officer may refer particular complaints to the Standards
Committee where he/she feels that it would be inappropriate for him/her to take a decision
on it, for example where he/she has previously advised the member on the matter or the
complaint is particularly sensitive.
Where he/she requires additional information in order to come to a decision, he/she may
come back to you for such information, and may request information from the member
against whom your complaint is directed. Where your complaint relates to a Parish
Councillor, the Monitoring Officer may also inform the Parish Council of your complaint and
seek the views of the Parish Clerk before deciding whether the complaint merits formal
investigation.
In appropriate cases, the Monitoring Officer may seek to resolve the complaint informally,
without the need for a formal investigation. Such informal resolution may involve the
member accepting that his/her conduct was unacceptable and offering an apology, or other
remedial action by the authority. Where the member or the authority make a reasonable
offer of local resolution, but you are not willing to accept that offer, the Monitoring Officer
will take account of this in deciding whether the complaint merits formal investigation.

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 58

If your complaint identifies criminal conduct or breach of other regulation by any person, the
Monitoring Officer has the power to call in the Police and other regulatory agencies.
5

How is the investigation conducted?
The Council has adopted a procedure for the investigation of misconduct complaints, which
is attached as Appendix Two to these arrangements.
If the Monitoring Officer decides that a complaint merits formal investigation, he/she will
appoint an Investigating Officer, who may be another senior officer of the authority, an
officer of another authority or an external investigator. The Investigating Officer will decide
whether he/she needs to meet or speak to you to understand the nature of your complaint
and so that you can explain your understanding of events and suggest what documents the
Investigating Officer needs to see, and who the Investigating Officer needs to interview.
The Investigating Officer would normally write to the member against whom you have
complained and provide him/her with a copy of your complaint, and ask the member to
provide his/her explanation of events, and to identify what documents he needs to see and
who he needs to interview. In exceptional cases, where it is appropriate to keep your
identity confidential or disclosure of details of the complaint to the member might prejudice
the investigation, the Monitoring Officer can delete your name and address from the papers
given to the member, or delay notifying the member until the investigation has progressed
sufficiently.
At the end of his/her investigation, the Investigating Officer will produce a draft report and
will send copies of that draft report, in confidence, to you and to the member concerned, to
give you both an opportunity to identify any matter in that draft report which you disagree
with or which you consider requires more consideration.
Having received and taken account of any comments which you may make on the draft
report, the Investigating Officer will send his/her final report to the Monitoring Officer.

6

What happens if the Investigating Officer concludes that there is no evidence of a
failure to comply with the Code of Conduct?
The Monitoring Officer will review the Investigating Officer’s report and, (following
consultation with the Independent Person), if he/she is satisfied that it is sufficient, the
Monitoring Officer will write to you and to the member concerned and to the Parish Council,
where your complaint relates to a Parish Councillor, notifying you that he/she is satisfied
that no further action is required, and give you both a copy of the Investigating Officer’s final
report. If the Monitoring Officer is not satisfied that the investigation has been conducted
properly, he/she may ask the Investigating Officer to reconsider his/her report.

7

What happens if the Investigating Officer concludes that there is evidence of a failure
to comply with the Code of Conduct?
The Monitoring Officer will review the Investigating Officer’s report and after considering the
public interest will then either send the matter for local hearing before the Hearings Panel
or, after consulting the Independent Person, seek local resolution.
The Public Interest Stage
In every case where there is sufficient evidence to justify an investigation or formal hearing.
The Monitoring Officer must go on to consider ( in consultation with the Independent
Person) whether an investigation or formal hearing is required in the public interest.

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 59

It is not the case that an investigation or formal hearing will automatically take place once
the evidential stage is met. An investigation or formal hearing will usually take place unless
the Monitoring Officer is satisfied that there are public interest factors tending against such
an investigation/hearing which outweigh those tending in favour. In some cases, the
Monitoring Officer may be satisfied that the public interest can be properly served by
offering the relevant elected Member the opportunity to have the matter dealt with by an
alternative remedy rather than bringing the complaint before a formal hearing of the
Standards Committee.
When deciding the public interest, Monitoring Officer should consider each of the questions
set out below as paragraphs a) to e) so as to identify and determine the relevant public
interest factors tending for and against investigation/hearing. These factors should enable
the Monitoring Officer to form an overall assessment of the public interest.
The explanatory text below each question in paragraphs a) to e) provides guidance to the
Monitoring Officer when addressing each particular question and determining whether it
identifies public interest factors for or against investigation/hearing. The questions identified
are not exhaustive, and not all the questions may be relevant in every case. The weight to
be attached to each of the questions, and the factors identified, will also vary according to
the facts and merits of each case.
It is quite possible that one public interest factor alone may outweigh a number of other
factors which tend in the opposite direction. Although there may be public interest factors
tending against an investigation or in a particular case, the Monitoring Officer should
consider whether nonetheless an investigation/formal hearing should go ahead and those
factors put to the Standards Committee for consideration when coming to its decision.
The Monitoring Officer should consider each of the following questions:
a) How serious is the breach of the Code?
•

The more serious the breach, the more likely it is that a formal hearing is required.

•

When assessing the seriousness of a breach, the Monitoring Officer should include in
their consideration the elected Member’s culpability and the harm caused, by asking
themselves the questions at b) and c).

b) What is the level of culpability of the elected Member?
•

The greater the Member’s level of culpability, the more likely it is that an investigation
is required.

•

Culpability is likely to be determined by:

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 60



the Member’s level of involvement;



the extent to which the breach of the Code was premeditated and/or planned;



the extent to which the Member has benefitted from the conduct;



whether the Member has previously breached the Code of Conduct;



whether the breach was or is likely to be continued, repeated or escalated;

c) What are the circumstances of and the harm caused to the complainant?
•

The circumstances of the complainant are highly relevant. The more vulnerable the
complainant’s situation, or the greater the perceived vulnerability of the complainant,
the more likely it is that a formal investigation or hearing is required.

•

This includes where a position of trust or authority exists between the Member and
complainant.

•

It is more likely that a formal hearing is required if the conduct complained of was
motivated by any form of prejudice against the complainant’s actual or presumed
ethnic or national origin, gender, disability, age, religion or belief, sexual orientation or
gender identity; or if the Member targeted or exploited the complainant, or
demonstrated hostility towards the complainant, based on any of those
characteristics.

•

The Monitoring Officer also needs to consider if a formal hearing is likely to have an
adverse effect on the complainant’s physical or mental health, always bearing in mind
the seriousness of the conduct complained of, the availability of special measures
and the possibility of a formal hearing without the participation of the complainant.

•

The Monitoring Officer should take into account the views expressed by the
complainant about the impact that the conduct has had. In appropriate cases, this
may also include the views of the complainant’s family.

•

However, the Monitoring Officer does not act for complainants or their families in the
same way as solicitors act for their clients, and Monitoring Officers must form an
overall view of the public interest.

d) What is the impact on the community?
•

The greater the impact of the conduct complained of on the community, the more
likely it is that an investigation or formal hearing is required.

•

Community is not restricted to communities defined by location and may relate to a
group of people who share certain characteristics, experiences or backgrounds,
including an occupational group.

e) Is an investigation or formal hearing a proportionate response?

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 61

•

In considering whether investigation or formal hearing is proportionate to the likely
outcome, the following may be relevant:

i.

The cost, especially where it could be regarded as excessive when weighed against
any likely penalty. The Monitoring Officer should not decide the public interest on the
basis of this factor alone. It is essential that regard is also given to the public interest
factors identified when considering the other questions in paragraphs a) to e), but
cost can be a relevant factor when making an overall assessment of the public
interest.

ii.

Cases should be dealt with in accordance with principles of effective case
management.

7.1

Local Resolution
The Monitoring Officer may consider that the matter can reasonably be resolved
without the need for a hearing. In such a case, he/she will consult with the
Independent Person and with you as complainant and seek to agree what you
consider to be a fair resolution which also helps to ensure higher standards of
conduct for the future. Such resolution may include the member accepting that
his/her conduct was unacceptable and offering an apology, and/or other remedial
action by the authority. If the member complies with the suggested resolution, the
Monitoring Officer will report the matter to the Standards Committee and the Parish
Council for information, but will take no further action. However, if you tell the
Monitoring Officer that any suggested resolution would not be adequate, the
Monitoring Officer will refer the matter for a local hearing.

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 62

7.2

Local Hearing
If the Monitoring Officer considers that local resolution is not appropriate, or you are
not satisfied by the proposed resolution, or the member concerned is not prepared
to undertake any proposed remedial action, such as giving an apology, then the
Monitoring Officer will report the Investigating Officer’s report to the Hearings Panel
which will conduct a local hearing before deciding whether the member has failed to
comply with the Code of Conduct and, if so, whether to take any action in respect of
the member.
The Council has agreed a procedure for local hearings, which is attached as
Appendix Three to these arrangements.
Essentially, the Monitoring Officer will conduct a “pre-hearing process”, requiring the
member to give his/her response to the Investigating Officer’s report, in order to
identify what is likely to be agreed and what is likely to be in contention at the
hearing, and the Chair of the Hearings Panel may issue directions as to the manner
in which the hearing will be conducted. At the hearing, the Investigating Officer will
present his/her report, call such witnesses as he/she considers necessary and
make representations to substantiate his/her conclusion that the member has failed
to comply with the Code of Conduct. For this purpose, the Investigating Officer may
ask you as the complainant to attend and give evidence to the Hearings Panel. The
member will then have an opportunity to give his/her evidence, to call witnesses and
to make representations to the Hearings Panel as to why he/she considers that
he/she did not fail to comply with the Code of Conduct.
The Hearings Panel, with the benefit of any advice from the Independent Person,
may conclude that the member did not fail to comply with the Code of Conduct, and
so dismiss the complaint. If the Hearings Panel concludes that the member did fail
to comply with the Code of Conduct, the Chair will inform the member of this finding
and the Hearings Panel will then consider what action, if any, the Hearings Panel
should take as a result of the member’s failure to comply with the Code of Conduct.
In doing this, the Hearings Panel will give the member an opportunity to make
representations to the Panel and will consult the Independent Person, but will then
decide what action, if any, to take in respect of the matter.

8

What action can the Hearings Panel take where a member has failed to comply with
the Code of Conduct?
The Council has delegated to the Hearings Panel such of its powers to take action in
respect of individual members as may be necessary to promote and maintain high
standards of conduct. Accordingly the Hearings Panel may –
8.1

Publish its findings in respect of the member’s conduct;

8.2

Send a formal letter to the Member;

8.3

Report its findings to Council or to the Parish Council for information;

8.4

Recommend to the member’s Group Leader (or in the case of un-grouped
members, recommend to Council or to Committees) that he/she be removed from
any or all Committees or Sub-Committees of the Council;

8.5

Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the member be removed from the
Cabinet, or removed from particular Portfolio responsibilities;

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 63

8.6

Instruct the Monitoring Officer to or recommend that the Parish Council arrange
training for the member;

8.7

Remove or recommend to the Parish Council that the member be removed from all
outside appointments to which he/she has been appointed or nominated by the
authority or by the Parish Council;

8.8

Withdraw or recommend to the Parish Council that it withdraws certain facilities
provided to the member by the Council; or

8.9

Exclude or recommend that the Parish Council exclude the member from the
Council’s offices or other premises, with the exception of meeting rooms as
necessary for attending Council, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings.

The Hearings Panel has no power to suspend or disqualify the member or to withdraw
members’ or special responsibility allowances.
9

What happens at the end of the hearing?
At the end of the hearing, the Chair will state the decision of the Hearings Panel as to
whether the member failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and as to any actions which
the Hearings Panel resolves to take.
As soon as reasonably practicable thereafter, the Monitoring Officer shall prepare a formal
decision notice in consultation with the Chair of the Hearings Panel, and send a copy to
you, to the member and to the Parish Council, make that decision notice available for public
inspection and report the decision to the next convenient meeting of the Council.
The decision notice will include a brief statement of the facts, the provisions of the code
engaged by the allegations, the view of the Independent Person, the reasoning of the
decision maker and any sanction applied. The decision notice will be published on the
Council’s website.

10

Who are the Hearings Panel?
The Hearings Panel is a Sub-Committee of the Council’s Standards Committee. The
Standards Committee has decided that it will comprise three members of the Council,
appointed on a political balance basis.
The Independent Person is invited to attend all meetings of the Hearings Panel and his/her
views are sought and taken into consideration before the Hearings Panel takes any
decision on whether the member’s conduct constitutes a failure to comply with the Code of
conduct and as to any action to be taken following a finding of failure to comply with the
Code of Conduct.

11

Who is the Independent Person?
The Independent Person is a person who has applied for the post following advertisement
of a vacancy for the post, and is appointed by a positive vote from a majority of all the
members of Council.
A person cannot be “independent” if he/she –

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 64

11.1

Is, or has been within the past 5 years, a member, co-opted member or officer of
the authority;

11.2

Is or has been within the past 5 years, a member, co-opted member or officer of a
parish council within the authority’s area, or

11.3

Is a relative, or close friend, of a person within paragraph 11.1 or 11.2 above. For
this purpose, “relative” means –
11.3.1

Spouse or civil partner;

11.3.2

Living with the other person as husband and wife or as if they were civil
partners;

11.3.3

Grandparent of the other person;

11.3.4

A lineal descendent of a grandparent of the other person;

11.3.5

A parent, sibling or child of a person within paragraphs 11.3.1 or 11.3.2;

11.3.6

A spouse or civil partner of a person within paragraphs 11.3.3, 11.3.4 or
11.3.5; or

11.3.7

Living with a person within paragraphs 11.3.3, 11.3.4 or 11.3.5 as
husband and wife or as if they were civil partners.

Please note, however, that transitional arrangements allow the Council to appoint a person
as an Independent Person who, although not a member of the Standards Committee at the
time of appointment (or thereafter), has held such a post during the 5 years ending 30 June
2012.
12

Revision of these arrangements
The Council’s Standards Committee may by resolution agree to amend these
arrangements, and the Council has delegated to the Chair of the Hearings Panel the right
to depart from these arrangements where he/she considers that it is expedient to do so in
order to secure the effective and fair consideration of any matter.

13

Appeals
There is no right of appeal for you as complainant or for the member against a decision of
the Monitoring Officer or of the Hearings Panel
If you feel that the authority has failed to deal with your complaint properly, you may make a
complaint to the Local Government Ombudsman.

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 65

Appendix One

The authority’s Code of Conduct ( New one to be inserted)

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 66

Appendix Two

Procedure for Investigations
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

PROCEDURE FOR INVESTIGATION OF MISCONDUCT COMPLAINTS

Article I. INTRODUCTION
1.

This procedure applies to the investigation of misconduct complaints where a decision has
been taken to refer for formal investigation.

Article II. APPOINTMENT OF INVESTIGATING OFFICER
2.

Once a decision has been made to refer a complaint for local investigation, the Monitoring
Officer will appoint an Investigating Officer in respect of the allegation, and instruct him/her
to conduct an investigation of the allegation and to make a report to the Monitoring Officer.
The Investigating Officer may be an Officer of the Council, the Officer of another Local
Authority, or an external Investigating Officer.
The Investigating Officer may appoint persons to assist him/her in the conduct of his/her
functions and may obtain such professional advice as may be necessary for the conduct of
the investigation.

Article III.
3.

The Monitoring Officer shall notify the Member in writing:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.

Article IV.
CLERK
4.

NOTIFYING THE MEMBER
that the allegation has been referred for formal investigation;
the identity of the person making the allegation [unless identification of the
complainant might prejudice the investigation or put the complainant at risk];
of the conduct which is the subject of the allegation;
of the procedure which will be followed in respect of the allegation; and
of the identity of the Investigating Officer.

NOTIFYING THE PARISH OR TOWN COUNCIL

Where the allegation relates to the conduct of a Member of a Parish or Town Council in
his/her capacity as such, at the same time as notifying the Member, the Monitoring Officer
will notify the Clerk to the Parish or Town Council concerned in writing of the investigation.

Article V. NOTIFYING THE COMPLAINANT
5.

At the same time as notifying the Member, the Monitoring Officer will notify the person who
made the allegation in writing of the matters set out at paragraph 3 i, iii – v.

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 67

Article VI.
6.

CONDUCT OF INVESTIGATION

[a]

Purpose of the Investigation
The purpose of the Investigating Officer’s investigation is to enable him/her to prepare
and present to the Monitoring Officer a report with sufficient information to determine
whether the Member has acted in breach of the Code of Conduct or local protocol
and, where there has been a breach of the Code of Conduct or local protocol, whether
any action should be taken in respect of the Member or in consequence of the breach,
and what any action should be.

[b]

Termination of the Investigation
The Investigating Officer may terminate his/her investigation at any point, where
he/she is satisfied that he/she has sufficient information to enable him/her to report to
the Monitoring Officer and to enable the Monitoring Officer to come to a considered
decision on the report.

[c]

Additional Matters
Where, in the course of his/her investigation, the Investigating Officer becomes aware
of any other matter which appears to him/her to indicate a breach of the Code of
Conduct or local protocol by the Member other than the breach which he/she is
currently investigating the Investigating Officer shall either:
i.

[where the additional matter relates to an apparent breach of the Authority’s
Code of Conduct by a member of the principal authority] report the matter to
the Monitoring Officer who will provide the Member with details of the matter
in the form set out in paragraph 6 iii and iv above and invite the Member to
provide a statement as to why the additional matter does not constitute a
breach of the Code of Conduct. The Monitoring Officer will then determine, in
consultation with the Independent Person, whether to request the
Investigating Officer to investigate the additional matter;

ii.

[where the additional matter constitutes an apparent breach of the Authority’s
protocols but not a breach of the Code of Conduct by a Member of the principal
authority] report the matter to the Monitoring Officer who will provide the
Member with details of the matter in the form set out in paragraph 6 iii and iv
above and invite the Member to provide a statement as to why the additional
matter does not constitute a breach of the Authority’s local protocols. The
Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, will then take
a decision whether to request the Investigating Officer to consider the matter
and report to the Monitoring Officer as appropriate.

iii.

[where the additional matter relates to an apparent breach of the Code of
Conduct or a local protocol by a Parish or Town Councillor] notify the Clerk to
the Town or Parish Council of the additional matter and any action taken.

[d]

Following notification to the Member, the Investigating Officer will identify an initial list
of persons to be interviewed, organisations from whom information is to be sought
and documents to be inspected as part of the investigation. The Investigating Officer
may supplement or amend this list at any stage of the investigation.

[e]

Production of Documents, Information and Explanations

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 68

[f]

i.

In the course of the investigation, the Investigating Officer and any person
authorised on his/her behalf may make such enquiries of any person or
organisation, and request any person or organisation to provide any document
or information which is in his/her/its possession or control, or provide any
explanation, as he/she thinks necessary for the purposes of carrying out the
investigation.

ii.

In the course of the investigation, the Investigating Officer and any person
authorised on his/her behalf may require any authority of which the Member
is a member to provide any document which is in his/her/its possession or
control which he/she thinks necessary for the purposes of carrying out the
investigation.

Interviews
i.
In the course of the investigation the Investigating Officer may request any
person to attend and appear before him/her or otherwise provide any
information, document or explanation for the purpose of paragraph 10[e], as
he/she thinks necessary for the purposes of carrying out the investigation.
ii.
Representation
Any person who appears before the Investigating Officer can arrange to be
accompanied at their own expense by a Solicitor or friend.
iii.
Notes of Interviews
Where practicable, following the interview the Investigating Officer shall
produce a written note of the material points of the interview, provide two
copies of that note to the person interviewed and ask them to return one copy
signed as a correct record of the interview, with such corrections or
amendments as they may feel necessary for that purpose.

DRAFT REPORT
11.

[a]

Where the Investigating Officer is satisfied that he/she has sufficient information to
meet the requirement set out in paragraph 10[a], or has obtained as much information
as is likely to be reasonably capable of being obtained, he/she will prepare a draft
report setting out:
i.
ii.
iii.
iv.
v.
vi.
vii.
viii.
ix.
x.
xi.

the details of the allegation;
the relevant provisions of statute, of the Code of Conduct and any relevant
local protocols;
the Member’s initial response to notification of the allegation [if any];
the relevant information, advise and explanations which he/she has obtained
in the course of the investigation;
a list of any documents relevant to the matter;
a list of those persons whom he/she has interviewed and those organisations
from whom he/she has sought information;
a note of any person or organisation who has failed to co-operate with the
investigation and the matter in which they have failed to co-operate;
a statement of his/her draft findings of fact;
the reasoning for his/her decision;
his/her conclusion as to whether the Member has or has not failed to comply
with the Code of Conduct for Members of any authority or a local protocol; and
any recommendations which the Investigating Officer is minded to make to
any authority concerned for reviewing or reconsidering any decision which
was the subject of the breach of the Code of Conduct or local protocol, for
rectifying any deficiency in the authority’s decision-making procedures or for
preventing or deterring any breach of the Code of Conduct or local protocol or

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 69

to remedy the position of any person who may have suffered detriment or
injustice as a result of the breach. Where the allegation relates to a Parish or
Town Councillor, such recommendations would be recommendations which
the Investigating Officer would recommend be made to the Parish or Town
Council.
[b]

The draft report should also state that the report does not necessarily represent the
Investigating Officer’s final finding, and that the Investigating Officer will present a
final report to the Monitoring Officer once he/she has considered any comments
received on the draft report.

[c]

The Investigating Officer shall then send a copy of his/her draft report in confidence
to the Member and the Complainant and request that they send any comments
thereon to him/her within 14 days.

[d]

The Investigating Officer may send a copy of, or relevant extracts from his/her draft
report in confidence to any person on whose evidence he/she has relied in compiling
the draft report, and request that they send any comments thereon to him/her within
14 days.

FINAL REPORT
12.

[a]

After the expiry of that period [or such extended period as the Investigating Officer
may allow], the Investigating Officer shall reconsider and amend his/her draft report
in the light of any comments received, and produce and send to the Monitoring Officer
his/her final report. The final report should state that the report represents the
Investigating Officer’s final findings and should have appended to it copies of any
documents which the Investigating Officer has relied on in reaching his/her
conclusions, such as background documents or telephone conversations, letters and
notes of interviews with witnesses.

[b]

The Monitoring Officer will review the Investigating Officer’s report and, if he/she is
satisfied that the Investigating Officer’s report is sufficient he/she shall then:
i.

where the final report concludes that there has not been a failure to comply
with the Code of Conduct for Members or a local protocol, will write to the
Complainant and the Member concerned and to the Parish Council, where the
complaint relates to a Parish Councillor, notifying them that he/she is satisfied
that no further action is required and provide a copy of the final report.

ii.

where the final report concludes that there has been a failure by the Councillor
to comply with the Code of Conduct for Members or with a local protocol,
he/she will either send the matter for local hearing before the Hearings Panel
or, after consulting the Independent Person, seek local resolution.

(c)

If the report is dealt with by local resolution then that is the end of the matter.

(d)

If it is determined that there should be a local hearing then the procedure for Local
Hearing will apply.

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 70

Appendix Three

Procedure for Hearings
SOUTH LAKELAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

PROCEDURE FOR LOCAL HEARING OF ALLEGATIONS ABOUT THE
PERSONAL CONDUCT OF COUNCIL MEMBERS
INTRODUCTION
1.

Where there is no local resolution of complaints following evidence of a failure to comply with the Code
of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer will report the Investigating Officer’s report to the Hearings Panel
which will conduct a local hearing before deciding whether the member has failed to comply with the
Code of Conduct and, if so, whether to take any action in respect of the member.

2.

The person[s] making the complaint will be referred to in this procedure as the Complainant and the
person against whom the complaint is made will be referred to as the Member. The allegation will be
heard by the Standards Committee or a Sub-Committee or Hearings Panel of the Standards
Committee.

PRE-HEARING PROCESS
3.

Upon receipt of the final report of the Investigating Officer including a finding that the Member failed to
comply with the Code of Conduct for Members and it is considered that a local resolution is not possible
and that the matter should be considered at a formal hearing the Monitoring Officer shall arrange for
the Hearings Panel to consider the matter.

4.

Where the Monitoring Officer is the Investigating Officer he/she must arrange for a separate legal
advisor to the Panel to be appointed in respect of the allegation.

NOTIFYING THE MEMBER AND COMPLAINANT
5.

Within five working days of the receipt of the Investigating Officer’s report the Monitoring Officer shall
send a copy of the report to the Member and the Complainant, making the provision of the report
conditional upon any appropriate undertaking of confidentiality. The Chairman of the Standards
Committee and Independent Person shall be informed of the allegation by the Monitoring Officer, as
well as any Parish or Town Council Clerk where the allegation relates to conduct of a Member in
his/her capacity as a member of a Parish or Town Council.

6.

The Member shall be asked for a written response, within fifteen working days of the receipt of the
report. The response shall set out the reply to the Investigating Officer’s report and state whether or
not he/she:
i.

disagrees with any of the findings of fact in the Investigating Officer’s report, including the
reasons for any disagreement;

ii.

wants to be represented, at his/her own expense, at the hearing by any other person;

iii.

wants to give evidence to the Hearings Panel, either verbally or in writing;

iv.

wants to call relevant witnesses to give evidence to the Hearings Panel;

v.

wants any part of the hearing to be held in private;

vi.

wants any part of the Investigating Officer’s report or other relevant documents to be
withheld from the public.

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 71

7.

The Member shall be informed that if, at the meeting of the Panel, he/she seeks to dispute any matter
contained in the Investigating Officer’s report without having previously notified the Monitoring Officer
of the intention to do so the Committee may either [a] adjourn the meeting to enable the Investigating
Officer to provide a response, or [b] refuse to allow the disputed matter to be raised.

8.

Upon receipt, the Monitoring Officer shall invite the relevant Investigating Officer to comment, within
ten working days, on the Member’s response, and to say whether or not he/she:
i.

wants to be represented or be present at the hearing;

ii.

wants to call relevant witnesses to give evidence or submit written or other evidence to
the Panel;

iii.

wants any part of the hearing to be held in private;

iv.

wants any part of the Investigating Officer’s report or other relevant documents to be
withheld from the public.

9.

Upon receipt of the Investigating Officer’s response, the Monitoring Officer will consider the responses
of the Member and the Investigating Officer and request the Monitoring Officer to set a date for the
hearing in consultation with the Chairman and all Members.

10.

The Members and the Investigating Officer are entitled to request that any witnesses they want should
be called. However, the Chairman of the Hearing may limit the number of witnesses to be called, if
he/she believes the number requested is unreasonable and that some witnesses will simply be
repeating the evidence of earlier witnesses, or else not providing evidence that will assist the
Committee to reach its decision.

11.

Nothing in this procedure shall limit the Chairman of the Hearing from requesting the attendance of
any additional witnesses whose evidence he/she considers would assist the Committee to reach its
decision.

12.

The Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Chairman and Independent Person, will:
i.

confirm a date, time and place for the Hearing, which must be within three months from
the date of the Investigating Officer’s report was received;

ii.

confirm the main facts of the case that are agreed;

iii.

confirm the main facts that are not agreed;

iv.

provide copies of any written evidence to the relevant parties;

v.

confirm which witnesses will be called by the parties;

vi.

provide the parties with a copy of the proposed procedure for the Hearing, specifying
which parts of the matter, if any, may be considered in private; and

vii.

ensure the appropriate information, with the agenda, is provided to everyone involved in
the Hearing at least two weeks before the proposed date of the Hearing.

THE HEARING
13.

The Hearings Panel shall decide, on a balance of probabilities, whether the complaint[s] is or are
upheld upon the evidence presented to it.

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 72

14.

Each Panel Member shall have one vote, and all matters/issues shall be decided by a simple majority
of votes cast. If there are equal numbers of votes for and against, the Chairman shall have the second
and casting vote.

15.

The meeting of the Panel will be open to the public and press unless confidential information or exempt
information is likely to be disclosed.

PROCEDURE AT THE HEARING
16.

The initial order of business at the meeting shall be as follows:i.

Establishing whether the Panel is quorate;

ii.

Declarations of interest;

iii.

Introductions

iv.

Consideration as to whether to adjourn or to proceed in the absence of the Member, if the
Member is not present;

v.

Consideration of any procedural issues and, in particular, any representation from the
Investigating Officer and/or the Member as to reasons why the Committee should exclude
the press and public and determination as to whether to exclude the press and public.

17.

The purpose of the Hearing is to determine the facts at issue and what action, if any, should be taken.
An inquisitorial approach will be adopted by the Panel members in seeking information and clarifying
facts and issues. The Chairman will control the procedure and evidence presented at the Hearing,
including the questioning of witnesses.

18.

The Panel members may at any time seek legal advice from their advisor. [Such advice will be notified
to the public in the presence of the Investigation Officer and the Member.]

19.

The procedure will be as follows, subject to the Chairman being able to make changes as he or she
thinks fit in order to ensure a fair and efficient hearing.

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 73

PROCEEDING IN THE ABSENCE OF THE MEMBER
20.

21.

22.

23.

If the Member is not present at the start of the Hearing:
i.

The Chairman will ask the Monitoring Officer whether the Member has indicated his/her
intention not to attend the Hearing;

ii.

The Hearings Panel shall then consider any reasons which the Member has provided for
not attending the Hearing and shall decide whether it is satisfied that there is sufficient
reason for such failure to attend;

iii.

If the Panel is satisfied with such reasons, it shall adjourn the Hearing to another date;

iv.

If the Panel is not satisfied with such reasons, or if the Member has not given any such
reasons, the Panel shall decide whether to consider the matter and make a determination
in the absence of the member or to adjourn the Hearing to another date.

Presentation by the Investigating Officer
21.1

The Investigating Officer will present the evidence which is relevant to the matter. The
Investigating Officer may introduce any witness required to substantiate any matter
contained in the report which has been disputed and present any other relevant evidence.

21.2

The Member or his/her representative may ask questions of the Investigating Officer or
any witness.

21.3

The Panel members or Independent Person may ask questions of the Investigating Officer
or any witness.

Presentation by the Member
22.1

The Member or his/her representative will present the evidence which is relevant to the
matter. The Member or his/her representative may introduce witnesses or present any
other relevant evidence.

22.2

The Investigating Officer may ask questions of the Member, or any witness.

22.3

The Panel members or Independent Person may ask questions of the Member or any
witness.

22.4

The Investigating Officer and then the Member or his/her representative will be given the
opportunity to sum up.

Decision by the Hearings Panel
23.1

The Panel will consider in private, with the Independent Person, all the evidence which it
has heard in order to establish its findings of fact.

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 74

24.

23.2

At any stage in the consideration of the matter the Panel may return to ask further
questions of the Investigating Officer or the Member or seek further information. The other
party will be given an opportunity to comment upon the questions asked or the responses
made.

23.3

The Panel may seek legal advice at any time. Such advice may be given in the presence
of the Investigating Officer and the Member if appropriate.

23.4

At the conclusion of their deliberations, the Chairman will advise the Member and the
Investigating Officer of their findings and whether the Code of Conduct has been
breached.

23.5

If the Panel concludes that the Member has acted in breach of the Code representations
will be invited from the Investigating Officer and the Member as to what action, if any, it
should take. The Panel may ask questions of the Member and the Investigating Officer.

The Panel, having heard any representations, will consider what actions, if any, to take.
The findings that the Panel may make are:
a)

That there has been no breach of the Code;

b)

That the Member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct, but that no action needs
to be taken;

c)

That the Member has failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and the Panel will:










Publish its findings in respect of the Member’s conduct;
Send a formal letter to the Member
Report its findings to the Council or Parish Council for information;
Recommend to the member’s Group Leader (or in the case on an ungrouped
member(s), recommend to Council or Committees) that he/she be removed from any
or all committees or sub-committees of the Council;
Recommend to the Leader of the Council that the member be removed from the
Executive or removed from particular Portfolio responsibilities;
Instruct the Monitoring Officer to recommend that the Parish Council arrange training
for the member;
Remove or recommend to the Parish Council that the member be removed from all
outside appointments to which he/she has been appointed or nominated by the
authority or by the Parish Council;
Withdraw or recommend to the Parish Council that it withdraws certain facilities
provided to the member by the Council; or
Exclude or recommend that the Parish Council exclude the member from the
Council’s offices or other premises, with the exception of meeting rooms as necessary
for attending Council, Committee and Sub-Committee meetings.

The Hearings Panel has no power to suspend or disqualify the member or to withdraw members’ or special
responsibility allowances.
25.

In deciding what penalty to set, the Committee will consider all relevant circumstances.

26.

The Chairman will announce the decision of the Committee, the action, if any, it is proposed to take
and the reasons for the decision.

27.

The Committee will then consider in open session whether there are any recommendations which
should be made to any Authority concerned arising from the consideration of the allegation.

APPEAL

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 75

28

There is no right of appeal against the decision of the Hearing Panel.

NOTICE OF FINDINGS
29.

A full written decision in draft [including the reasons for it] will be prepared as soon as practicable. The
draft decision will be forwarded to the Chairman of the Committee for approval.

30.

Once approved and as soon as reasonably practicable after the Hearing the full written decision will
be forwarded to the Member, the Independent Person, the Complainant, the Investigating Officer and
any other Authority concerned.

31.

If the Hearing Panel wishes to publish its finding, the Monitoring Officer, subject to paragraph 32, shall
arrange for a summary of the findings to be published in such manner as the Hearings Panel may
determine.

32.

Where the Panel determines that there has not been a breach of the Code of Conduct, the notice shall:

33.

34.

35.

i.

State that the Panel found that the Member had not failed to comply with the Code of
Conduct and shall give its reasons for reaching that finding; and

ii.

Not be published in the local newspaper if the Member so requests.

Where the Panel determines that there has been a failure to comply with the Code of Code but no
action is required, the notice shall:
i.

State that the Panel found that the Member had failed to comply with the Code of Conduct
but that no action needs to be taken in respect of that failure;

ii.

Specify the details of the failure;

iii.

Give reasons for the decision reached; and

Where the Panel determines that there has been a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct and
that a sanction should be imposed, the notice shall:
i.

State that the Panel found that the Member had failed to comply with the Code of Conduct;

ii.

Specify the details of the failure;

iii.

Give reasons for the decision reached;

iv.

Specify the sanction imposed;

Copies of the agenda, reports and minutes of a Hearing, as well as any background papers, apart
from sections of documents relating to parts of the Hearing that were held in private, shall be available
for public inspection for six years after the Hearing.

Draft amended 01/04/2021

Page 76

Appendix 4
GUIDANCE ON CODE OF CONDUCT
This document has been produced by the Cumbria Monitoring Officers to offer
guidance on the revised Code of Conduct for Members as adopted by the
principal authorities with effect from ( insert date) 1 July 2012. The Code,
amended from time to time applies to all Members and co-opted members of
the principal authorities within Cumbria.
The Code does not apply to the actions of authorities as a whole, or to the
conduct of its officers and employees.
Ultimately, it is the Members’ responsibility to take specific advice from the
Monitoring Officer where appropriate and to make a decision as to the most
suitable course of action.
Code of Conduct
The Code of Conduct (“the Code”) is not intended to be an exhaustive list of
all the obligations that are placed on Members, but it is the responsibility of
individual Members to comply with the provisions of the Code as well as such
other legal obligations as may apply to them from time to time.
The Code is intended to be consistent with the seven principles as attached to
the Code which define the standards that Members should uphold. A failure
to act in accordance with these general principles may amount to a breach of
the Code of Conduct. For example, by placing yourself in situations where
your honesty and integrity may be questioned, your conduct may be conduct
which could “bring your office or your Authority into disrepute”.
When does the Code apply to you?
The Code applies to you whenever you act in your official capacity as a
Member or co-opted member of the Authority. A co-opted member is a
person who is not a Member of the Council but who is either a member of any
committee or sub-committee of the Council, or a member of, and represents
the Council on any joint committee or joint sub-committee of the Council and
who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at that meeting
of that committee or sub-committee.
For the purposes of the Code, a “meeting” is a meeting of the Council, any of
its committees, sub-committees, joint committees or joint sub-committees.
General Obligations under the Code
You must act solely in the public interest and should never improperly
confer an advantage or disadvantage on any person or act to gain
financial or other material benefits for yourself, your family, a friend, a
close associate, an employer or business carried on by you.

08/04/2021

Page 77

Appendix 4
For example, your behaviour would be improper if you sought to further your
private interests through your position as a Member.
You must not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to
outside individuals or organisations that may influence you in the
performance of your official duties.
It would not be appropriate to accept favours, gifts or hospitality from
someone that may, at a later date, require something from the Council that
you are in a position to influence. For example, you may be offered a
discount by a business in the area which subsequently applies for planning
permission and/or a licence. You may be on the relevant committee dealing
with the application and, therefore, be in a difficult position.
You must not disclose any information given to you as a Member in
breach of any confidence
There may be circumstances where you are required to do so by law but you
should seek the advice of the Monitoring Officer if there is any doubt about
this.
You must not disclose confidential information, or information which you
believe to be of a confidential nature, except in any of the following
circumstances:
•
•
•

•

You have the consent of the person authorised to give it.
You are required by law to do so.
The disclosure is made to a third party for the purposes of obtaining
professional advice (for example, your lawyer or other professional
adviser) provided that person agrees not to disclose the information to any
other person.
The disclosure is in the public interest. This is only justified in limited
circumstances, when all of the following four requirements are met:
1.
2.
3.
4.

the disclosure must be reasonable
the disclosure must be in the public interest
the disclosure must be made in good faith
the disclosure must be made in compliance with any reasonable
requirements of your authority

In relation to the disclosure of confidential information in the public interest,
the four requirements to be met are outlined in more detail below.
1.

The first requirement, that the disclosure must be reasonable, requires
you to consider matters such as:
•

Whether you believe that the information disclosed, and any
allegation contained in it, is substantially true. If you do not believe
this, the disclosure is unlikely to be reasonable.

08/04/2021

Page 78

Appendix 4
•
•

•

•
•

•
2.

Whether you make the disclosure for personal gain. If you are paid
to disclose the information, the disclosure is unlikely to be
reasonable.
The identity of the person to whom the disclosure is made. It may
be reasonable to disclose information to the police or to an
appropriate regulator. It is less likely to be reasonable for you to
disclose the information to the world at large through the media.
The extent of the information disclosed. The inclusion of
unnecessary detail, and in particular, private matters such as
addresses or telephone numbers, is likely to render the disclosure
unreasonable.
The seriousness of the matter. The more serious the matter
disclosed, the more likely it is that the disclosure will be reasonable.
The timing of the disclosure. If the matter to which the disclosure
relates has already occurred, and is unlikely to occur again, the
disclosure may be less likely to be reasonable than if the matter is
continuing, or is likely to reoccur.
Whether the disclosure involves your authority failing in a duty of
confidence owed to another person.

The second requirement, that the disclosure must be in the public
interest, needs to involve one or more of the following matters or
something of comparable seriousness, that has either happened in the
past, is currently happening, or is likely to happen in the future:
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)

A criminal offence is committed.
Your authority or some other person fails to comply with any
legal obligation to which they are subject.
A miscarriage of justice occurs.
The health or safety of any individual is in danger.
The environment is likely to be damaged.
That information tending to show any matter falling within (a) to
(e) is deliberately concealed.

3.

The third requirement, that the disclosure is made in good faith, will not
be met if you act with an ulterior motive, for example, to achieve a party
political advantage or to settle a score with a political opponent.

4.

The fourth requirement, that you comply with the reasonable
requirements of your authority, means that before making the
disclosure you must comply with your authority’s policies or protocols
on matters such as whistle-blowing and confidential information. You
must first raise your concerns through the appropriate channels set out
in such policies or protocols.

08/04/2021

Page 79

Appendix 4
In summary, to decide whether the disclosure is reasonable and in the public
interest, you may need to conduct a balancing exercise weighing up the public
interest in maintaining confidentiality against any countervailing public interest
favouring disclosure. This will require a careful focus on how confidential the
information is, on any potentially harmful consequences of its disclosure, and
on any factors which may justify its disclosure despite these potential
consequences.
In some situations, it is extremely unlikely that a disclosure can be justified in
the public interest. These will include where the disclosure amounts to a
criminal offence, or where the information disclosed is protected by legal
professional privilege.
You must not bring your office or your Authority into disrepute
You must not bring your office or authority into disrepute whilst acting in your
official capacity.
As a Member, your actions and behaviour are subject to greater scrutiny than
that of ordinary members of the public. You should be aware that your
actions might have an adverse impact on your office or your authority.
Dishonest and deceitful behaviour in your role as a member may bring your
authority into disrepute, as may conduct in your private life which results in a
criminal conviction, such as dishonest, threatening or violent behaviour.
You must treat others with respect and promote equality by not
discriminating unlawfully against any person, and by treating people
with respect, regardless of their sex, race, age, religion, gender, sexual
orientation or disability. You should respect the impartiality and
integrity of the authority’s statutory officers and its other employees.
Respect
You must treat others with respect. In politics, rival groupings are common,
either in formal political parties or more informal alliances. It is expected that
each will campaign for their ideas, and they may also seek to discredit the
politics and actions of their opponents. Criticism of ideas and opinion is part
of democratic debate, and does not in itself amount to failing to treat someone
with respect.
Ideas and policies may be robustly criticised, but individuals should not be
subject to unreasonable or excessive personal attacks. This particularly
applies to dealing with the public and officers. Chairs of meetings are
expected to apply the rules of debate and procedure rules or standing orders
to prevent abusive or disorderly conduct.
Whilst there may be unreasonable demands on Members, Members should,
as far as possible, treat people courteously and with consideration. Rude and
offensive behaviour lowers the public’s expectations and confidence in its
elected representatives.
08/04/2021

Page 80

Appendix 4

Equality
You must not do anything which may cause your authority to breach any
equality laws. You must be careful not to act in a way which may amount to
any of the prohibited forms of discrimination, or do anything which hinders
your authority’s fulfilment of its positive duties under equality laws. Such
conduct may cause your authority to breach the law, and you may find
yourself subject to a complaint that you have breached this paragraph of the
Code of Conduct.
Bullying
You should not bully any person. As an elected Member you are in a position of
authority and power over Council employees and others. Bullying is offensive,
intimidating, malicious or insulting behaviour involving the misuse of power that can
make a person feel vulnerable, upset, humiliated, undermined or threatened. Power
does not always mean being in a position of authority, but can include both personal
strength and the power to coerce through fear or intimidation.
Bullying can take the form of physical, verbal and non-verbal conduct. Bullying may
include, by
way of example:
(a) physical or psychological threats;
(b) overbearing and intimidating levels of supervision/instruction;
(c) inappropriate derogatory remarks about someone's performance;
Legitimate, reasonable and constructive criticism of a worker's performance or
behaviour, or reasonable instructions given to workers in the course of their
employment, will not amount to bullying on their own.
Harassment
You should not harass any person. Harassment is any unwanted physical, verbal or
non-verbal conduct that has the purpose or effect of violating a person's dignity or
creating an intimidating, hostile, degrading, humiliating or offensive environment for
them. A single incident can amount to harassment.
It also includes treating someone less favourably because they have submitted or
refused to submit to such behaviour in the past.
Unlawful harassment may involve conduct of a sexual nature (sexual harassment), or
it may be related to age, disability, gender reassignment, marital or civil partner
status, pregnancy or maternity, race, colour, nationality, ethnic or national origin,
religion or belief, sex or sexual orientation. Harassment is unacceptable even if it
does not fall within any of these categories.
Harassment may include, for example:
(a) unwanted physical conduct or "horseplay", including touching, pinching, pushing
and grabbing;
(b) continued suggestions for social activity after it has been made clear that such
suggestions are unwelcome;
(c) sending or displaying material that is pornographic or that some people may find
offensive (including e-mails, text messages, video clips and images sent by
mobile phone or posted on the internet);

08/04/2021

Page 81

Appendix 4
(d) unwelcome sexual advances or suggestive behaviour (which the harasser may
perceive as harmless);
(e) racist, sexist, homophobic or ageist jokes, or derogatory or stereotypical remarks
about a particular ethnic or religious group or gender;
(f) outing or threatening to out someone as gay or lesbian;
(g) offensive e-mails, text messages or social media content; or
(h) mocking, mimicking or belittling a person's disability.
A person may be harassed even if they were not the intended "target". For example,
a person may be harassed by racist jokes about a different ethnic group if the jokes
create an offensive environment.

Impartiality and integrity of officers of the authority
You should respect the impartiality and integrity of the Authority’s statutory
officers and its other employees.
You should not approach or pressure anyone who works for, or on behalf of
the authority to carry out their duties in a biased or partisan way. They must
be neutral and should not be coerced or persuaded to act in a way that would
undermine their neutrality. For example, you should not get officers to help
you prepare party political material, or to help you with matters relating to your
private business.
Although you can robustly question officers in order to understand, for
example, their reasons for proposing to act in a particular way, or the content
of a report that they have written, you must not try and force them to act
differently, change their advice, or alter the content of that report, if doing so
would prejudice their professional integrity.
When carrying out your public duties you must make all choices, such
as making public appointments, awarding contracts or recommending
individuals for rewards or benefits on merit.
As an elected Member of the Council you are responsible for administering
resources on behalf of the public of the area that you serve. You should
administer these resources fairly and in accordance with the law. It is
inappropriate for the Council’s resources or powers to be used in such a way
that the authority and its Members be left open to accusations that in
appropriate influence played a part, for example, “it’s not what you know, it’s
who you know!”
You are accountable for your decisions to the public and you must cooperate fully with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office.
This requirement is linked to carrying out all duties in a fair and transparent
manner. Members are able to be held to account for their actions and, this
being the case, you must be open to and cooperate with any legitimate
scrutiny that is to be applied.

08/04/2021

Page 82

Appendix 4
You must be as open as possible about your decisions and actions and
the decisions and actions of your authority and should be prepared to
give reasons for those decisions and actions.
The law requires that Members give reasons for their decisions. This is so
that the public we serve are able to understand why we have taken a course
of action and, if necessary, exercise any right of challenge that is open to
them.
You must declare any private interests, both disclosable pecuniary
interests and any other registrable interests, that relate to your public
duties and must take steps to resolve any conflicts arising in a way that
protects the public interest, including registering and declaring interest
in a matter which conforms to the procedures within the code.
The Code of Conduct contains a scheme for the registration of interests. It
exists to support openness and transparency; the public are able to see
where you may have an interest. Secondly, the scheme of registration exists
to protect individual Members against accusations of a conflict of interest etc.
Lastly, the registration of disclosable pecuniary interests is required by law.
You must ensure, when using or authorising the use by others of the
resources of your authority, that such resources are not used
improperly for political purposes (including party political purposes)
and you must have regard to any applicable Local Authority Code of
Publicity made under the Local Government Act 1986.
Where your authority provides you with resources (for example telephone,
computer and other IT facilities, transport or support from council employees),
you must only use these resources or employees for carrying out your local
authority business and any other activity which you authority has authorised
you to use them for.
You must be familiar with the rules applying to the use of these resources
made by your authority. Failure to comply with the authority’s rules is likely to
amount to a breach of the code.
If you authorise someone (for example a member of your family) to use your
authority’s resources, you must take care to ensure that this is allowed by the
authority’s rules.
You should never use Council resources for purely political purposes,
including designing and distributing party political material produced for
publicity purposes.
You must promote and support high standards of conduct when serving
in your office.
You have a duty to promote and support high standards of conduct and be
consistent with the seven general principles attached to the Code.
08/04/2021

Page 83

Appendix 4

INTERESTS
Register of interests
Any interests notified to the Monitoring Officer will be included in the register
of interests. A copy of the register will be available for public inspection and
will be published on the authority’s website.
You have two types of registrable interests (a)

A Disclosable Pecuniary Interest; and

(b)

Interests other than pecuniary interests that the Council has decided
should be registered

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
1. These are interests which must be notified to the Council’s Monitoring
Officer within 28 days beginning with the day on which you become a
Member or co-opted member of the authority in accordance with the
statutory requirements of the Localism Act 2011. These are enforced by
criminal sanction, and failure to declare is a criminal offence.
2. You need to register your interests so that the public, authority staff and
fellow Members know which of your interests might give rise to a conflict
of interest. The register is a document that can be consulted when (or
before) an issue arises, and so allows others to know what interests you
have, and whether they might give rise to a potential conflict of interest.
3. The register also protects you. You are responsible for deciding whether
or not you should declare an interest in a meeting, but it can be helpful for
you to know early on if others think that a potential conflict might arise. It
is also important that the public know about any interest that might have
to be declared by you or other Members, so that decision making is seen
by the public as open and honest. This helps to ensure that public
confidence in the integrity of local government is maintained.
4. A ‘disclosable pecuniary interest’ is an interest of yourself or your partner
(which means spouse or civil partner, a person with whom you are living
as husband or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are
civil partners) of the following descriptions (a)

Details of any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation
carried on for profit or gain.

08/04/2021

Page 84

Appendix 4
(b)

Details of any payment or provision of any other financial benefit
(other than from the relevant authority) made or provided within the
relevant period in respect of any expenses incurred by you in
carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election
expenses. (This includes any payment or financial benefit from a
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.

(c)

Details of any contract which is made between the relevant person
(or a body in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest)
and the relevant authority under which goods or services are to be
provided or works are to be executed; and which has not been fully
discharged.

(d)

Details of any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of
the relevant authority.

(e)

Details of any licence (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in
the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.

(f)

Details of any tenancy where (to your knowledge) the landlord is
the relevant authority; and the tenant is a body in which the
relevant person has a beneficial interest.

(g)

Details of any beneficial interest in securities of a body where that
body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the
area of the relevant authority; and either the total nominal value of
the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of the total issued
share capital of that body; or if that share capital of that body is of
more than one class, the total nominal value of the shares of any
one class in which the relevant person has a beneficial interest
exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that
class.

For the purposes of the foregoing “relevant authority” means the District
Council, and “relevant period” means the period of 12 months ending with
the day on which you notify the Monitoring Officer of your disclosable
pecuniary interest.
Notification of Other Interests
5.

In addition to the disclosable pecuniary interests, you must, within 28
days of the Code being adopted by or applied to your authority; or your
election or appointment to office (where that is later), notify the
Monitoring Officer in writing of the details of your interests within the
following categories, which the Council has decided must be included
in the register of interests:

08/04/2021

Page 85

Appendix 4
(a) Details of any body of which you are a member or in a position of
general control or management and to which you are appointed or
nominated by the District Council;
(b) Details of any body of which you are a member or in a position of
general control or management and which –
(i) exercises functions of a public nature,
(ii) is directed to charitable purposes, or
(iii) is a body which includes as one of its principal purposes
influencing public opinion or policy (this includes political
parties or trade union;
(c) Details of any persons from who you have a received a gift or
hospitality with an estimated value of at least £50. (You must
register any gifts and hospitality worth £50 or over that you receive
personally in connection with your official duties.
What is a “body exercising functions of a public nature”?
6.

Although it is not possible to produce a definitive list of such bodies,
here are some criteria to consider when deciding whether or not a body
meets that definition •

Does that body carry out a public service?

•

Is the body taking the place of local or central government in
carrying out the function/

•

Is the body (including one outsourced in the private sector)
exercising a function delegated to it by a public authority?

•

Is the function exercised under legislation or according to some
statutory power?

•

Can the body be judicially reviewed?

Unless you answer “yes” to one of the above questions, it is unlikely
that the body in your case is exercising functions of a public nature.
Examples of bodies included in this definition: government agencies,
other councils, public health bodies, council-owned companies
exercising public functions, arms-length management organisations
carrying out housing functions on behalf of your authority, school
governing bodies.
If you need further information or specific advice, please contact your
monitoring officer.
What do things mean?
Here are some definitions from the legislation that may help you. Ask for
advice if necessary:

08/04/2021

Page 86

Commented [FL1]: NB Officer code of conduct says £25

Appendix 4
“the Act”

means the Localism Act 2011;

“body in which
the relevant
person has a
beneficial
interest”

means a firm in which the relevant person is a partner
or a body corporate of which the relevant person is a
director, or in the securities of which the relevant
person has a beneficial interest;

“director”

includes a member of the committee of management
of an industrial and provident society;

“land”

excludes an easement, servitude, interest or right in or
over land which does not carry with it a right for the
relevant person (alone or jointly with another) to
occupy the land or to receive income;

“M”

means a member of a relevant authority;

“member”

includes a co-opted member;

“relevant
authority”

means the authority of which M is a member;

“relevant
period”

means the period of 12 months ending with the day on
which M gives a notification for the purposes of
section 30(1) or section 31(7), as the case may be, of
the Act;

“relevant
person”

means (i) M,
(ii) M's spouse or civil partner,
(iii)a person with whom M is living as husband and
wife, or
(iv)a person with whom M is living as if they were
civil partners.

“securities”

means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan
stock, bonds, units of a collective investment scheme
within the meaning of the Financial Services and
Markets Act 2000 and other securities of any
description, other than money deposited with a
building society.

Gifts and Hospitality
7.

You must register the gift or hospitality and its source within 28 days of
receiving it.

8.

You should ask yourself would I have been given this if I was not on
the Council? If you are in doubt as to the motive behind a gift or
hospitality, we recommend that you register it or speak to the
Monitoring Officer or your parish clerk where appropriate.

08/04/2021

Page 87

Appendix 4
9.

You do not need to register gifts and hospitality which are not related to
your role as a member, such as Christmas gifts from your friends and
family, or gifts which you do not accept. However, you should always
register a gift or hospitality if it could be perceived as something given
to you because of your position or if your authority requires you to.

What if I do not know the value of a gift or hospitality?
10.

The general rule is, if in doubt as to the value of a gift or hospitality, you
should register it, as a matter of good practice and in accordance with
the principles of openness and accountability in public life.

11.

You may have to estimate how much a gift or hospitality is worth. Also,
an accumulation of small gifts you received from the same source over
a short period that add up to £50 or more should be registered.

Changes to Interests
12.

You must, within 28 days of becoming aware of any new interest or
change to any interest registered notify the Monitoring Officer of the
details of that new interest or change.

Disclosure of Interests
13.

Where you have a registrable interest in any business of your authority,
and where you are aware or ought reasonably to be aware of the
existence of that interest, and you attend a meeting of your authority at
which the business is considered, you must disclose to that meeting
the existence and nature of that interest at the commencement of that
consideration, or when the interest becomes apparent.

Sensitive interests
14.

Where you consider that disclosure of the details of an interest could
lead to you, or a person connected with you, being subject to violence
or intimidation, and the Monitoring Officer agrees, if the interest is
entered on the register, copies of the register that are made available
for inspection and any published version of the register will exclude
details of the interest, but may state that you have an interest, the
details of which are withheld.

What is sensitive information?
15.

It may include your sensitive employment (such as certain scientific
research or the Special Forces) or other interests that are likely to
create serious risk of violence or intimidation against you or someone
who lives with you.

16.

You should provide this information to your monitoring officer and
explain your concerns regarding the disclosure of the sensitive
information; including why it is likely to create a serious risk that you or
a person who lives with you will be subjected to violence or
intimidation. You do not need to include this information in your
register of interests, if your monitoring officer agrees but you need to
disclose at meetings the fact that you have a disclosable pecuniary
interest in the matter concerns.

08/04/2021

Page 88

Formatted: Font color: Red

Appendix 4
Non participation in case of disclosable pecuniary interest
17.

If you are present at a meeting of the Council, Cabinet or any
committee, sub-committee, joint committee or joint sub-committee of
the authority, and you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any
matter to be considered or being considered at the meeting:
•

You may not participate in any discussion of the matter at the
meeting.

•

You may not participate in any vote taken on the matter at the
meeting.

•

If the interest is not registered, you must disclose the interest to the
meeting.

•

If the interest is not registered and is not the subject of a pending
notification, you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest
within 28 days.

In addition, the Council Procedure Rules require you to leave the room
where the meeting is held while any discussion or voting takes place.
18.

Where an executive member may discharge a function alone and
becomes aware of a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter being
dealt with or to be dealt with by her/him, the executive member must
notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and must not take any steps
or further steps in the matter.

Dispensations
19.

At District level The Monitoring Officer or Standards Committee, or at
Parish/Town Council level, the Clerk or the Council (dependent on
procedures) may grant you a dispensation, but only in limited
circumstances, to enable you to participate and vote on a matter in
which you have a disclosable pecuniary interest. These circumstances
are where -

1. It is considered that without the dispensation the number of persons
prohibited from participating in any particular business would be so
great a proportion of the body transacting the business as to
impede the transaction of the business.
2. That, without the dispensation, the representation of different
political groups on the body transacting any particular business
would be so upset as to alter the likely outcome of any vote relating
to the business.
3. That, without a dispensation, no member of the Cabinet would be
able to participate on this matter.
4. That the authority considers that the dispensation is in the interests
of persons living in the authority’s area
5. That the authority considers that it is otherwise appropriate to grant
a dispensation.
NB 2 and 3 above would not apply to Parish/Town Councillors
08/04/2021

Page 89

Appendix 4
Offences
20.

It is a criminal offence to
•
•
•
•
•
•

Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer of any disclosable pecuniary
interest within 28 days of election
Fail to disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest at a meeting if it is
not on the register
Fail to notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of a disclosable
pecuniary interest that is not on the register that you have
disclosed to a meeting
Participate in any discussion or vote on a matter in which you have
a disclosable pecuniary interest
As an executive member discharging a function acting alone, and
having a disclosable pecuniary interest in such a matter, failing to
notify the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of the interest.
Knowingly or recklessly providing information that is false or
misleading in notifying the Monitoring Officer of a disclosable
pecuniary interest or in disclosing such interest to a meeting

The criminal penalties available to a court are to impose a fine not exceeding
level 5 on the standard scale and disqualification from being a councillor for
up to 5 years.
Bias/Predetermination
Although not part of the code, members need to be clear that they are not
biased going into the decision making process.
If you have a personal interest in a matter as a result of the matter affecting
the well-being or financial position of yourself, member of your family or close
association more than it would affect the majority of other people in the ward
or electoral divisions affected by the decision, or in the authority’s areas or
constituency then there may be potential for bias/predetermination.
The rules against bias say that there are three distinct elements. The first
seeks accuracy in public decision-making and the second seeks the absence
of prejudice or partiality on the part of you as the decision-maker. An accurate
decision is more likely to be achieved by a decision-maker who is in fact
impartial or disinterested in the outcome of the decision and who puts aside
any personal prejudices.
The third requirement is for public confidence in the decision-making process.
Even though the decision-maker may in fact be scrupulously impartial, the
appearance of bias can itself call into question the legitimacy of the decisionmaking process. In general, the rule against bias looks to the appearance or
risk of bias rather than bias in fact, in order to ensure that ‘justice should not
only be done, but should manifestly and undoubtedly be seen to be done.
To varying degrees, these “requirements” might be seen to provide the
rationales behind what are generally taken to be three separate rules against
bias: “automatic” (or “presumed”) bias, “actual” bias and “appearance” bias.

08/04/2021

Page 90

Appendix 4
The rationale behind “automatic” or “presumed” bias appears to be that in
certain situations (such as if you have a pecuniary or proprietary interest in
the outcome of the proceedings then it must be presumed that you are
incapable of impartiality. Since a motive for bias is thought to be so obvious in
such cases, the decisions are not allowed to stand even though no
investigation is made into whether the decision-maker was biased in fact. In
these circumstances you should not participate in a decision.
The Localism Act 2011 has enshrined the rules relating to pre-disposition and
predetermination into statute. In essence you are not taken to have had, or
appeared to have had, a closed mind when making a decision just because
you have previously done anything that directly or in-directly indicated what
view you may take in relation to a matter and that matter was relevant to the
decision.
So, you are entitled to have a pre-disposition one way or another as long as
you have not pre-determined the outcome. You are able to express an
opinion providing that you come to the relevant meeting with an open mind,
able to take account of all of the evidence and make your decision on the day.
What does “affecting well-being or “financial position” mean?
The term “well-being” can be described as a condition of contentment and
happiness. Anything that could affect your quality of life, either positively or
negatively, is likely to affect your well-being.
A personal interest can affect you, your family or close personal associates
positively and negatively. So if you or they have the potential to gain or lose
from a matter under consideration, a personal interest would need to be
declared in both situations.
Who is a member of your family or close association?
A member of your family should be given wide meaning. It includes a partner
(someone you are married to, your civil partner, or someone you ligve with in
a similar capacity), a parent, parent-in-law, a son or daughter, a stepson, or
stepdaughter, the child of a partner, a brother or sister of yourself or your
partner, a grandparent, a grandchild, an uncle or aunt, a nephew or niece and
the partners of any of these people.
A person with whom you have a close association is someone that you are in
either regular or irregular contact with over a period of time who is more than
an acquaintance. It is someone a reasonable member of the public might
think you would be prepared to favour or disadvantage when discussing a
matter that affects them. It may be a friend, a colleague, a business associate
or someone whom you know through general social contacts.

08/04/2021

Page 91

Appendix 4
What if I belong to an authority without wards?
If you are a member of an authority that does not have wards, you will need to
declare a personal interest whenever you consider a matter in a meeting of
your authority if it affects the well-being or financial position of you, your family
or people with whom you have a close association, more than it would affect
other people in your authority’s areas./
What if I am not aware of my personal interest?
Clearly you cannot be expected to declare something of which you are
unaware. However you should not ignore the existence of interests which,
from the point of view of a reasonable and objective observer, you should
have been aware. If you become aware, or should have realised, that you have an
interest during consideration of the item, you should immediately declare this and
take the appropriate action.

When must I leave the room where the meeting is held?
You must leave immediately before any debate starts.
Non participation in case of pecuniary interest
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Subject to the following paragraph, below if you have a disclosable pecuniary
interest in any matter to be considered, or being considered, at the meeting,
then you should declare that interest to the meeting and should leave the
room whilst any discussion or vote takes place.
If a dispensation has been granted to you in relation to a disclosable
pecuniary interest then, subject to the terms of the dispensation, you may be
relieved from the above restrictions but will still be required to declare the
interest to the meeting.
Where you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any business of the Council, you
may attend a Meeting but only for the purpose of making representations, answering
questions or giving evidence relating to the business, provided that the public are
also allowed to attend the Meeting for the same purpose, whether under a statutory
right or otherwise. Once any such representations etc have been made, the Member
should leave the room whilst any discussion or vote takes place.

This would mean that as under current arrangements, Members will leave the
room during an item in which they have a DPI.

08/04/2021

Page 92

Appendix 4
In the interests of transparency it is good practice for you to make the nature
of a disclosable interest known when such a matter arises at a meeting. You
should identify the nature of the interest which you have in any matter so that
is known and understood by all and is a matter of public record. If a
declaration is not made, other than through the register, it would not
necessarily be apparent to anyone who is present at the meeting why a
particular Member is not participating or voting in any matter.

08/04/2021

Page 93

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 94

Item No.8
South Lakeland District Council
Standards Committee
Tuesday, 20 April 2021

Internal Audit Report – Assurance Review of
Members’ Interests and Declarations

Portfolio:

Cllr Philip Dixon

Report from:

Monitoring Officer

Report Author:

Linda Fisher, – Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead Specialist
(Monitoring Officer)

Wards:

N/A

Forward Plan:

N/A

1.0

Expected Outcome

1.1

This report is presented to update members on the internal audit review and the
register of interests and gifts and hospitality for employees and Members for the
period April 2020 to April 2021.

2.0

Recommendation

2.1

It is recommended that the Committee notes the recommendations and actions
within the internal audit report at Appendix 1

2.2

Notes the update on member and officers’ declarations in relation to gifts and
hospitality.

3.0

Background and Proposals

3.1

Under the respective codes of conduct for South Lakeland District Council Members
and Employees there are requirements to declare any interests and gifts and
hospitality as detailed therein. Copies of the Code of Conduct both for Members and
Employees can be found within the Council’s Constitution.

3.2

For employees there is a standard corporate form and offers of hospitality that are
declined should also be included in any declarations. For members this information
is recorded in Declaration of Interest forms to be updated accordingly.

3.3

The Standards Committee has an overview of the Employee Register of interests,
gifts and hospitality and is requested to review this on an annual basis. The previous
review took place in September 2019.

3.4

A review of gifts and hospitality has been carried out by Internal Audit this year and
their recommendations can be found within the report at Appendix 1. This includes
ensuring this report is presented to the Standards Committee. Further it recommends

Page 95

that The Code of Conduct be expanded to include the necessary detail, including the
recording of declined gifts and hospitality, and consideration of the cumulative effect
of small gifts. Guidance provided as part of the induction process be reviewed.
3.5

In relation to the Internal Audit report recommendation 3 regarding gifts and
hospitality, we are updating Standards Committee that there has been one officer
declaration of gifts/hospitality in respect of receipt of a painting over the financial
threshold of £25 and one member declaration in respect of receipt of firewood over
the financial threshold of £50.

3.6

The Code of Conduct requires employees to notify the Monitoring Officer of all gifts
and hospitality which they have received where the value is £25 or where any gift or
hospitality in connection with their duties is declined.
The Member Code of Conduct requires members to declare details of any persons
from whom a Member has received a gift or hospitality with an estimated value of at
least £50. Members must register any gifts or hospitality worth £50 or over that are
received personally in connection with Members’ official duties.

4.0

Consultation

4.1

All Lead Specialists have been asked to confirm that the register of interests is up to
date. In the last 12 months all significant gifts or hospitality that have been received
have been recorded and are as described above at 3.5..
Alternative Options

5.0

5.1

There are no alternative options. This review forms part of the Standards Committee
work programme.

6.0

Links to Council Priorities

6.1

Links to the Council’s values of being open and transparent

7.0

Implications

Financial, Resources and Procurement
7.1

N/A

Human Resources
7.2

N/A

Legal
7.3

Under the respective Codes of Conduct in the Constitution both members and
employees are required to declare appropriate interests and any gifts and hospitality
received.

Health, Social, Economic and Environmental
7.4

Have you completed a Health, Social, Economic and Environmental Impact
Assessment? No

7.5

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: not
applicable

Equality and Diversity
7.6

Have you completed an Equality Impact Analysis? No

Page 96

7.7

If you have not completed an Impact Assessment, please explain your reasons: not
applicable

Risk
Risk

Consequence

Controls required

Register is not maintained or
incomplete

Employees / Members at
risk of breaching the code
of conduct

Regular monitoring of the
code and sufficient
awareness for employees
and Members.

Contact Officers
Linda Fisher, Lead Specialist, Legal Governance and Democracy and Monitoring Officer
Linda.Fisher@southlakeland.gov.uk
Appendices Attached to this Report
(delete if no appendices attached)
Appendix No.

Name of Appendix

1

Internal Audit Report

Tracking Information
Signed off by
Legal Services
Section 151 Officer
Monitoring Officer
CMT

Date sent
Report Author
08.04.2021
Report Author
N/A

Circulated to
Lead Specialist
Human Resources Lead Specialist
Communications Team
Leader
Committee Chairman
Portfolio Holder
Ward Councillor(s)
Committee
Executive (Cabinet)
Council

Date sent
Report Author
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A
08/04/202
N/A
N/A
N/A
N/A

Page 97

Date Signed off
01.04.21
12.04.21
01.04.21
N/A

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 98

Appendix 1
Internal Audit
FINAL

South Lakeland District Council
Page 99

Assurance Review of Members’ Interests and Declarations

2020/21

April 2021

Executive Summary
OVERALL ASSESSMENT

KEY STRATEGIC FINDINGS
At the time audit work was conducted, there was a lack of evidence of
retention of signed agreements to the Code of Conduct. This was being
promptly addressed.
Gifts and Hospitality disclosures are reported to the Standards Committee
annually in September. The last report to the Committee was in September
2018.

Page 100

Current guidance to members regarding reporting of gifts and hospitality
might lead to confusion regarding the need to report declined gifts.

ASSURANCE OVER KEY STRATEGIC RISK / OBJECTIVE

9. Essential strategic partnerships required to deliver the Council Plan do not operate
effectively,
21 Accountable Body for large value schemes.

SCOPE
Councillors have a duty to maintain high standards of conduct; the standards that members
are expected to observe is set out in the Code of Conduct and includes requirements for
openness and transparency. The review considered the arrangements for managing
declarations of interest, and recording gifts and hospitality. The review included induction,
training and awareness, annual declarations, in-year recording, and reporting.

GOOD PRACTICE IDENTIFIED
Contents of the Risk Register, and of meeting minutes, indicate that the
Council has continued to operate effectively during the Covid-19 pandemic,
and to manage its impact.
The Council reacted positively to requests for increased on-line training, and
the identification of mandatory training, made in October 2019.

ACTION POINTS
Urgent

Important

Routine

Operational

0

2

1

0

South Lakeland District Council
Assurance Review of Members Interests and Declarations

Page 1

Assurance - Key Findings and Management Action Plan (MAP)
Rec.

Risk Area

Finding

Recommendation

Priority

Management

Implementation

Responsible

Comments

Timetable

Officer

(dd/mm/yy)

(Job Title)

Page 101

2

Directed

It was noted that, at the time audit work was
conducted, there was a lack of evidence of
retention of signed agreement to the Code of
Conduct. This was addressed towards the end
of the audit process.

As intended by the Legal, Governance
and Democracy Specialist (Monitoring
Officer), all members be asked to
confirm that they have read and
understood the Code of Conduct. A
separate form be included as part of
the induction process to evidence this
going forward.

2

A new process has been introduced to
address the need for members to say
they have read and understood the
member code of conduct.

03/03/21

Linda Fisher

3

Delivery

Gifts and Hospitality are reported to the As planned, regular reporting of Gifts
Standards Committee annually in September. and Hospitality to the Standards
The last report to the Committee was in Committee be resumed.
September 2018. There have been
disclosures since that date, although they
have been few. Discussions with the Legal,
Governance and Democracy Specialist
(Monitoring Officer) indicated it is intended
that a report will be taken to the next
Standards Committee, which will also include
Declarations of Interest.

2

A report will be presented to the 20th
April 2021 Standards Committee.

20/04/21

Linda Fisher

PRIORITY GRADINGS

1

URGENT

Fundamental control issue on which
action should be taken immediately.

2

IMPORTANT

Control issue on which action should be
taken at the earliest opportunity.

3

ROUTINE

Control issue on which action should be
taken.

South Lakeland District Council
Assurance Review of Members’ Interests and Declarations

Page 2

Rec.

1

Risk Area

Directed

Finding

A review of the Code of Conduct for
Members, and two documents provided as
part of the induction pack: Guidance notes on
Gifts and Hospitality, and Guidance for
Members on the Code of Conduct indicated a
disparity in detail and potential confusion
regarding the need to report declined gifts.

Recommendation

The Code of Conduct be expanded to
include the necessary detail, including
the recording of declined gifts and
hospitality, and consideration of the
cumulative effect of small gifts.
Guidance provided as part of the
induction process be reviewed.

Priority

3

Management

Implementation

Responsible

Comments

Timetable

Officer

(dd/mm/yy)

(Job Title)

This will be picked up as part of the
20/04/21
Linda Fisher
review of the members code of conduct. Standards Committee

Page 102
PRIORITY GRADINGS

1

URGENT

Fundamental control issue on which
action should be taken immediately.

2

IMPORTANT

Control issue on which action should be
taken at the earliest opportunity.

3

ROUTINE

Control issue on which action should be
taken.

South Lakeland District Council
Assurance Review of Members’ Interests and Declarations

Page 3

Operational - Effectiveness Matter (OEM) Action Plan
Ref

Risk Area

Finding

Suggested Action

Management Comments

No Operational Effectiveness Matters were identified.

Page 103
ADVISORY NOTE

Operational Effectiveness Matters need to be considered as part of management review of procedures.
South Lakeland District Council
Assurance Review of Members’ Interests and Declarations

Page 4

Findings
Directed Risk:
Failure to properly direct the service to ensure compliance with the requirements of the organisation.

Page 104

Ref

Expected Key Risk Mitigation

Effectiveness of
arrangements

Cross Reference
to MAP

Cross Reference
to OEM

GF

Governance Framework

There is a documented process instruction which accords with the relevant regulatory guidance,
Financial Instructions and Scheme of Delegation.

Partially in place

1

-

RM

Risk Mitigation

The documented process aligns with the mitigating arrangements set out in the corporate risk
register.

In place

-

-

C

Compliance

Compliance with statutory, regulatory and policy requirements is demonstrated, with action taken
in cases of identified non-compliance.

Partially in place

2

-

Other Findings
The Council's Constitution was last revised in November 2019. It sets out how the Council operates and makes decisions, along with the procedures it follows to ensure its
efficiency, transparency and accountability.
The Constitution includes a Code of Conduct, adopted by the Council, which members and co-opted members are expected to comply with. The Code of Conduct includes
specific requirements relating to: registering and declaring disclosable pecuniary and other registrable interests such as the receipt of gifts and hospitality.
The Council reacted positively to requests for increased on-line training made at is meeting in October 2019. The Monitoring Officer has also prepared a revised Member
Development Strategy and associated Training Matrix to be discussed by Council.

South Lakeland District Council
Assurance Review of Members’ Interests and Declarations

Page 5

Delivery Risk:
Failure to deliver the service in an effective manner which meets the requirements of the organisation.

Page 105

Ref

Expected Key Risk Mitigation

PM

Performance Monitoring

There are agreed KPIs for the process which align with the business plan requirements and are
independently monitored, with corrective action taken in a timely manner.

FC

Financial Constraint

The process operates within the agreed financial budget for the year.

R

Resilience

Good practice to respond to business interruption events and to enhance the economic, effective
and efficient delivery is adopted.

Effectiveness of
arrangements

Cross Reference
to MAP

Cross Reference
to OEM

Partially in place

3

-

Out of scope

-

-

In place

-

-

Other Findings
Council business has continued using virtual meetings during the Covid-19 pandemic, and a review of the Risk Register indicates that the impact of Covid-19, and how to maintain
control, is actively considered.
A review of meetings indicated that Declarations of Interest is a Standard Agenda item and that appropriate action is taken and minutes retained.

South Lakeland District Council
Assurance Review of Members’ Interests and Declarations

Page 6

EXPLANATORY INFORMATION
Scope and Limitations of the Review
1.

The definition of the type of review, the limitations and the responsibilities of
management in regard to this review are set out in the Annual Plan. As set out in
the Audit Charter, substantive testing is only carried out where this has been
agreed with management and unless explicitly shown in the scope no such work
has been performed.

Appendix A
Assurance Assessment
4.

Disclaimer
2.

Page 106

The matters raised in this report are only those that came to the attention of the
auditor during the course of the review, and are not necessarily a comprehensive
statement of all the weaknesses that exist or all the improvements that might be
made. This report has been prepared solely for management's use and must not
be recited or referred to in whole or in part to third parties without our prior
written consent. No responsibility to any third party is accepted as the report has
not been prepared, and is not intended, for any other purpose. TIAA neither
owes nor accepts any duty of care to any other party who may receive this report
and specifically disclaims any liability for loss, damage or expense of whatsoever
nature, which is caused by their reliance on our report.

The definitions of the assurance assessments are:
Substantial
Assurance

There is a robust system of internal controls operating effectively to
ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved.

Reasonable
Assurance

The system of internal controls is generally adequate and operating
effectively but some improvements are required to ensure that risks
are managed and process objectives achieved.

Limited
Assurance

The system of internal controls is generally inadequate or not
operating effectively and significant improvements are required to
ensure that risks are managed and process objectives achieved.

No Assurance

There is a fundamental breakdown or absence of core internal controls
requiring immediate action.

Acknowledgement
5.

We would like to thank staff for their co-operation and assistance during the
course of our work.

Effectiveness of arrangements

Release of Report

3.

6.

The definitions of the effectiveness of arrangements are set out below. These
are based solely upon the audit work performed, assume business as usual, and
do not necessarily cover management override or exceptional circumstances.
In place

The control arrangements in place mitigate the risk from arising.

Partially in place

The control arrangements in place only partially mitigate the risk
from arising.

Not in place

The control arrangements in place do not effectively mitigate the
risk from arising.

The table below sets out the history of this report.
Stage

Issued

Response Received

Audit Planning Memorandum:

26th October 2020

26th October 2020

Draft Report:

1st February 2021

1st April 2021

Final Report:

6th April 2021

South Lakeland District Council
Assurance Review of Members Interests and Declarations

Page 7

AUDIT PLANNING MEMORANDUM

Appendix B

Client:

South Lakeland District Council

Review:

Members’ Interests and Declarations

Type of Review:

Assurance

Outline scope (per Annual Plan):

Councillors have a duty to maintain high standards of conduct; the standards that members are expected to observe is set out in the Code of Conduct and includes
requirements for openness and transparency. The review will consider the arrangements for managing declarations of interest and recording gifts and hospitality. The
review will include induction, training and awareness, annual declarations, in-year recording, and reporting.

Audit Lead:

Sally Hunter

Directed

Delivery

Governance Framework: There is a documented process instruction which accords Performance monitoring: There are agreed KPIs for the process which align with
with the relevant regulatory guidance, Financial Instructions and Scheme of the business plan requirements and are independently monitored, with
Delegation.
corrective action taken in a timely manner.

Page 107

Detailed scope will consider:

Risk Mitigation: The documented process aligns with the mitigating arrangements Financial constraint: The process operates with the agreed financial budget for
set out in the corporate risk register.
the year.
Compliance: Compliance with statutory, regulatory and policy requirements is Resilience: Good practice to respond to business interruption events and to
demonstrated, with action taken in cases of identified non-compliance.
enhance the economic, effective and efficient delivery is adopted.

Requested additions to scope:

(if required then please provide brief detail)

Exclusions from scope:
Planned Start Date:

26/11/2020

Exit Meeting Date:

25/01/2021

Exit Meeting to be held with:

Legal, Governance and Democracy Specialist
(Monitoring Officer)

SELF ASSESSMENT RESPONSE
Matters over the previous 12 months relating to activity to be reviewed

Y/N (if Y then please provide brief
details separately)

Has there been any reduction in the effectiveness of the internal controls due to staff absences through sickness and/or vacancies etc?

N

Have there been any breakdowns in the internal controls resulting in disciplinary action or similar?

N

Have there been any significant changes to the process?

N

Are there any particular matters/periods of time you would like the review to consider?

N

South Lakeland District Council
Assurance Review of Members Interests and Declarations

Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 108

Standards Committee Work Programme April 2021May 2022
Standards Committee Training for new Members of
Standards Committee and refresher training offered
to existing members
Newly Elected District Councillors Induction
Training
Review of Officers and
Members Gifts and
Hospitality
Refresher Code of Conduct Training/How To be an
Effective Member for District Councillors

April
2021

May
2021

June
2021
√

Sept
2021

Dec
2021

February 2022

May 2022

Comments

√
√

√

√

√
√

√

Inspect Registers of Interests for District and Parish
Councillors
As required and update
the website

Consider and adjudicate Dispensation
Requests

Page 109

Establishment of a Council wide Governance and
Accountability working
Group
Review of website

√
√

√

To meet monthly
√

√

√

√

Review of member officer protocol
Review of expiration of all dispensations
Receive Annual Ombudsman Report from the LGO

√

√

√

As part of the review of
the constitution

√
√
√

Prepare Annual Report for Full Council

On going

Continue to raise the profile of the Standards Committee
with Parish and Town Councils

All year

Conduct yearly review of complaints, comments and
compliments procedure
√

Item No.9

Publicise Role and Work of Standards Committee, and
the Effectiveness of Standards Committee through the
Annual Report to full Council

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 110

